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Management Discussion and Analysis 
Macro-economic Review and Outlook 

While global growth is expected at a modest 2.8% in 2025, India is set to maintain its leadership with the IMF projecting 
growth of 6.2% in 2025 and 6.3% in 2026. Supported by strong fundamentals and strategic government initiatives, India is 
well-positioned to navigate the challenges ahead. 

Global outlook: After an unprecedented series of disruptions in recent years, global growth remained stable yet subdued 
through 2024 and was projected to continue similarly, as per the IMF’s January 2025 forecast. However, following the sharp 
escalation in trade tensions — with U.S. tariffs rising to levels “not seen in a century” (IMF, April 2025) — the outlook has 
weakened. The IMF now expects global growth to slow to 2.8% in 2025 and 3.0% in 2026. Growth in the euro area is 
projected to moderate to 0.8%, while emerging market and developing economies are expected to slow to 3.7% in 2025, 
with significant downgrades for economies most exposed to recent trade actions. Inflation is anticipated to ease, albeit at a 
slower pace than earlier expected, with global headline inflation reaching 4.3% in 2025 and 3.6% in 2026. 

India Story: According to the RBI, India's GDP growth is projected at 6.5% in FY 2025–26, supported by resilient demand 
and improving investment momentum. Inflation is expected to remain around 4%, with risks from global and weather-related 
factors "evenly balanced." Liquidity has improved, helping stabilize short-term rates and funding costs. The external sector 
remains resilient with strong services exports and healthy forex reserves. The RBI signals cautious optimism, while remaining 
prepared to act if conditions evolve. 

The RBI envisions a landscape of stable growth and anchored inflation, buoyed by easing financial conditions and resilient 
demand. A more accommodative funding environment is set to catalyse credit expansion, creating tailwinds for the broader 
economy and housing finance companies alike. 

Industry Overview – Unabated Demand for Housing 

The Indian housing finance sector is stepping into a phase of sustained structural growth. As per available market reports, 
individual housing loans have expanded to ₹33.54 lakh crore as of September 2024, marking a 14% year-on-year rise. This 
momentum reflects the growing aspirations of a younger demographic and the steady strengthening of the credit 
infrastructure. Disbursements remain robust, with over ₹4 lakh crore extended in the first half of FY25 alone. Encouragingly, 
there is a visible deepening of financial inclusion, with an increasing share of credit flowing towards the EWS and LIG 
segments. 
Housing prices too have risen by approximately 6.8% year-on-year in Q2 FY25, compared to 4.9% the year before, 
underscoring the enduring confidence of both homebuyers and lenders in the resilience of the sector. 

Several factors are underpinning this growth: strong macroeconomic fundamentals with GDP growth projections at 6.4–
6.5% in FY25, affordable interest rates, and the irreversible tide of urbanization. Post-pandemic shifts towards home 
ownership, particularly larger homes, continue to shape buyer preferences, while banks and HFCs ensure that credit flows 
remain accessible and competitive.  

The sector’s future is being reshaped by purposeful expansion into Tier II and III cities, bolstered by policy momentum 
through initiatives such as PMAY 2.0, UIDF, ARHC, and the digitization of land records. Technology is becoming a strong 
enabler, helping institutions reimagine customer journeys, underwriting processes, and portfolio management. As innovation 
in green housing, digital underwriting, and co-lending frameworks gathers pace, housing finance will play an even larger role 
— not only in building homes but in uplifting communities and transforming aspirations into reality. 

 

Affordable Housing – A Strategic Growth Driver 

Affordable housing is poised to be one of the most powerful engines of growth over the coming decade. The forces of rapid 
urban migration, rising economic mobility within the EWS and LIG segments, and targeted government interventions are 
converging to create a structural opportunity. 

Affordable Housing Finance Companies (AHFCs) are uniquely positioned to address this demand, particularly in semi-urban 
and emerging geographies, with their strong underwriting frameworks and deep distribution capabilities. The segment  
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remains significantly underpenetrated, offering headroom for sustained credit expansion and meaningful impact, especially 
among first-time homeowners. 

The government’s continued commitment through schemes like PMAY and the revised PSL guidelines will further accelerate 
progress, ensuring that affordable housing is not just a dream but an achievable reality for millions. 

At Nido, a significant portion of our retail customer base falls within the Affordable segment with an average ticket size of 
₹18 lakhs in FY25.  The affordable segment contributes over ₹1,400 crore to our loan book. We work at the intersection 
of aspiration and access, delivering credit to segments that have traditionally been underserved—salaried individuals without 
formal income proof, self-employed micro-entrepreneurs, first-time homebuyers in Tier II and III cities. With simple 
documentation, doorstep service, and underwriting powered by analytics, we bring formal credit to people who have never 
dealt with a bank before. We are confident that this focus will enable us to deliver both scale and social impact in the years 
to come, helping to build a stronger, more inclusive India. 

Company Overview 

Nido Home Finance: an asset-light, affordable housing finance company, poised to scale with the agility of a 
start-up. 

Founded in 2010 as Edelweiss Housing Finance, Nido Home Finance has demonstrated the ability to adapt ahead of the 
market. In its initial couple of years, the company served large-ticket, urban customers, but as India’s housing needs evolved, 
so did the company. Our focus shifted toward granular, low-income, and informal-income segments within affordable 
housing. This transformation has expanded our presence into non-metro towns and micro-markets and deepened our 
engagement with underserved segments—including new-to-credit borrowers and women homeowners—who are driving 
the next chapter of India's growth story. 

Our name, 'Nido,' draws inspiration from the Sanskrit word "नीड़" (Nīd), meaning 'Nest' — a reflection of our core purpose: 
enabling homeownership. We operate through 67 strategically located branches across high-growth urban centers, Tier I 
and Tier II towns, and key micro-markets within Tier I cities. To extend our reach into deeper pockets, we follow a hub-
and-spoke model, with branches as hubs and spoke locations ensuring last-mile connectivity. Our loan portfolio remains 
primarily retail home loan-focused, and we are proud to serve a growing customer base of more than 20,000 individuals. 

Staying Nimble. Scaling with Intent. 

Over the past few years, the credit landscape shifted sharply. The liquidity crisis and the pandemic changed how capital 
flows through the system. Traditional bank lending to NBFCs and HFCs moderated, and new funding structures—
securitization and co-lending—emerged to fill the gap. 

At Nido, we led these shifts early and pivoted our business model decisively towards an asset light model backed by co-
lending and securitization as a core operating strategy. Through these transactions, we have raised over ₹20 billion in 
cashflows over the past three years, building a strong foundation of investor trust and execution capability. On the back of 
this model, our ability to disburse loans independently of traditional funding sources has strengthened significantly. As a 
result, our disbursal volumes have increased from ₹11 billion to ₹14 billion relative to our traditional resource mobilization 
through term loans and NCDs. 

Today, the early signs of scale are clearly visible. Our co-lending platform is well established, with the value of co-lended 
loans multiplying each year and a cumulative CLM loan pool of ₹5 billion in the past 4 years. We have thus strengthened 
our funding mix and built avenues for sustainable growth. With a strong foundation in place, we are accelerating and 
capitalizing on the next phase of growth.  

Laying the Foundation for Sustainable Growth – Pivot to an Asset Light Model  

By pivoting to an asset light model, we have fundamentally rewired the way we operate. Over the past few years, every part 
of the organization—from our frontline teams to leadership— has fully understood and embraced the asset light framework.  

In an asset-light model, the company focuses on its core strengths — such as sourcing customers, providing services, or 
managing operations — without tying up large amounts of its own capital in assets. The company partners with others who 
provide the heavy capital. In housing finance, an asset-light model means the HFC or NBFC originates loans but relies on 
banks to fund most of the lending. The HFC designs products that fit the bank’s requirements and focuses on activities it 
knows best: customer acquisition, credit assessment, and servicing. The benefits are clear: The HFC gets predictable funding 
without taking on too much balance sheet risk. The bank expands into customer segments it otherwise cannot reach. The 
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customer gains easier access to housing finance. In many cases, this is supplemented by selling loan pools through 
securitizations like Direct Assignments (DA) and Pass-Through Certificates (PTCs), giving the HFC additional liquidity 
without holding the loans long-term. The model works because it shares risks, plays to each partner’s strengths, and keeps 
growth sustainable. 

Over the past three years, Nido has executed 42 securitization transactions across 11 investors, generating more than ₹16 
billion in cashflows.  

While we started our journey 14 years ago, we are effectively 4 years young! We have managed to change over the past 3-
4 years by building new processes, developing fresh capabilities and reshaping the way we engage with partners and 
stakeholders. The core way of looking at our business is redefined, thus, in spirit and in approach, we are four years young—
and built for the opportunities ahead. 

Levers for Scaling: Building on a Strong Foundation 

At Nido, our foundation for scaling is already in place. We have invested consistently across critical pillars, positioning 
ourselves for steady and sustainable growth: 

A differentiated asset-light business model 

Over the past 3 years, we have invested in not just understanding co-lending better, but also in cementing strategic 
partnerships with marquee partners such as State Bank Of India, Standard Chartered Bank, Bank of Baroda and UCO. We 
have invested effort and time in getting the co-lending transaction pipeline completely automated. This has been no easy 
task, as stitching together these partnerships and creating processes require effort, time and intellectual capital, in which we 
have already invested. We are confident this will provide us with a head start and a strategic advantage, while other players 
take time to master this business model on their own.  

Established brand and parentage 

The Edelweiss group is one of India’s prominent financial services organizations offering a products/services portfolio that 
caters to diverse investment and strategic requirements of corporate, institutional, HNI and retail clients. Today, the 
Edelweiss group enjoys a strong brand franchise in the financial services space backed by an enviable track record of value 
creation. By leveraging the existing relationships and natural synergies with the Edelweiss group we will be able to further 
expand the size of our AUM, and build scale.  

Well Defined Processes 

Our business processes ensure complete independence of functions and segregation of responsibilities. We have deployed 
state-of-the-art credit appraisal processes that allow us to access affordable housing customers without any compromise 
on quality. Further, our processes have been standardized with the objective of providing high levels of service-quality and 
time-efficiency. Our collection and recovery procedures are designed to minimize delinquencies and maximize recoveries. 
We have a well-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively 
manage risks associated with various business activities. We seek to monitor and control risk exposure through robust 
financial, credit and operational reporting systems.  

Experienced Management Team 

We are governed by a strong and independent board. Our Independent Directors come with a rich experience in Financial 
Services, Administration and Law. The management team consists of senior talent with deep understanding and knowledge 
of the housing finance space, and also of the extended financial services industry. We have built a diverse and experienced 
talent pool through careful calibration of our recruitment and training strategies. We have invested in people ahead of the 
curve keeping in mind our long-term growth plans. As of March-25 our employee headcount stood at ~ 720.  

Future-ready Ecosystem Based on Tech and Analytics 

During the pandemic, we prioritized investing in technology that is future-ready and adaptable. We developed our loan 
origination system in-house on a low-code platform. This approach has proven effective in providing quick turnarounds 
during integration with the automated co-lending platform used by our strategic partners. Our Loan Management System 
(LMS) and other peripheral systems are upgraded to the latest technology to support a scalable business. 

We also recognize the transformative power of data sciences and continue to invest in developing multiple use-cases 
associated with portfolio management, customer value management (CVM), and process efficiency: 
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- Data-Driven Decision Making: Deployment of state-of-the-art underwriting scorecards. 
- Enhancing Customer Lifetime Value: Effective retention and acquisition programs 
- Scalability in Operations: Use-cases to simplify document processing  
- Improving Risk Vigilance: Suite of risk models, simulations, and dashboards that allow risk function to manage 

portfolio and collections risks effectively 
 

Deep understanding of our customers:  

Customer centricity is key to all aspects of our business, be it product management or process development. We have 
extensive platforms to hear the ‘voice of our customers’, backed by customer research, which allow us to be close to our 
customers at all points in time to understand and take care of their financial requirements. 

Our Product Portfolio 

At the core of our offering is a range of mortgage-backed loan products that are designed to meet the diverse needs of our 
customers: 

• Home Loans form the backbone of our business, enabling salaried and self-employed individuals to purchase, 
construct, or renovate their residential properties. These loans, secured against the property itself, account for 
68% of our Loan Book as on March 31, 2025. 

• Non-Housing Loans, primarily Loans Against Property (LAP), are extended mainly to self-employed customers, 
secured against clear-title property assets. These loans help unlock capital for business expansion, property 
acquisition, or other personal or professional needs, contributing 19% to our Loan Book as on March 31, 2025. 

• Construction Finance supports the building of residential projects, backed by strong collateral security. 
Disbursements are milestone-based, closely linked to the progress of construction. This portfolio comprises 13% 
of our Loan Book as on March 31, 2025. 

We are also building new pillars of growth: 

• Green Home Loans to finance eco-friendly homes certified for sustainability, aligning with our commitment to 
responsible growth and future-ready living. 

• Affordable Housing Loans, where we aim to bring the dream of home ownership closer for economically 
weaker sections and lower-income groups, in step with national housing initiatives. 

• Balance Transfer and Top-up Loans, offering customers the opportunity to benefit from better terms, along 
with additional funds against the security of their homes. 

Our portfolio reflects our belief: growth must be inclusive, sustainable, and built on a strong foundation of trust and financial 
prudence. 

Customer Profile 

We continue to expand our reach among small-ticket, first-time borrowers, in line with the Government of India’s ‘Housing 
for All’ initiative. Our focus remains on growing steadily while maintaining strong underwriting standards and a high-quality 
loan book. 

New-to-credit customers form an important part of this strategy: 

• 25% of retail customers sourced in FY25 had no prior credit history. 

• As of March 31, 2025, new-to-credit borrowers made up 38% of our retail portfolio. 

We believe growth outside major metropolitan areas will be a key driver over time: 

• 74% of our loan accounts are from non-metro locations. 

Self-employed customers, often overlooked by traditional lenders, are a segment where we see meaningful opportunity 
with prudent risk management: 

• 53% of retail customers sourced in FY25 were self-employed. 
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Financial Highlights 

During FY25, the Company disbursed loans totalling ₹13.77 billion and closed the year with an Assets Under Management 
(AUM) of ~ ₹42.35 billion. The gross credit book stood at ₹32.44 billion as of March 31, 2025. 

Our fundamentals remain strong. We ended the year with a CRAR of 33.61%, a Net NPA of 1.76%, and a moderate leverage 
ratio with Debt-to-Equity at 3.8x. Standalone Profit After Tax for FY25 stood at ₹18.6 crore. Return on Average Total 
Assets was 0.47%, while Return on Average Net Worth was 2.28%. 

We maintain a diversified funding base across banks, NHB, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs), and securitization. In 
FY25, we raised ₹3.50 billion through term loans and ₹3.70 billion through public NCDs. Over the same period, co-lending 
and securitization transactions totalling ₹3.56 billion were completed with NBFCs and insurance companies. 

Operating expenses was ₹1.70 billion, while finance costs were ₹3.20 billion. Asset quality and collection performance 
improved during the year. Collection efficiency remained robust at 99.03%. 

We had earlier recognized elevated credit costs during FY21 and FY22, absorbing much of the pandemic-related impact 
upfront. These were expected to smoothen out over the next 3 to 4 years. Hence, resulting in a total credit cost of ₹11 
crore for the year. 

The Company’s credit rating remains strong, with an A+ Stable rating from CRISIL. 

Major Risk and Mitigation Measures.  

A successful risk management framework can help a company achieve business objectives amidst changing business dynamics 
and macroeconomic environments in the volatility, uncertainty, complexity, and ambiguity (VUCA) world. At Nido Home 
Finance, our risk management is not just another function; it is an integral part of business strategy.  

Respect for Risk is central to every business decision - "Is it worth it?" and "Can we afford it?". This principle-based approach 
has stood out well in protecting the organization from the vagaries of the external world.  

Our robust risk management system enables us to identify, assess, monitor, and manage risks. It involves analysing potential 
risks, determining the likelihood and impact of those risks, and developing strategies to mitigate or manage them. The 
primary goal of risk management is to minimize the impact of risks on the operations, financial performance, and our 
reputation. It is an ongoing process that requires constant attention and adaptation to changing business conditions. We 
are committed to managing risk, balancing risk and rewards, and supporting the overall business objectives.  

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework is followed for holistic risk management. The objective of the ERM 
framework is to look at the risks from all perspectives, not just credit or financial risks, and ensure that key risks are 
adequately and addressed in a timely manner. The organization has developed an in-house "Eleven-risk Framework" to 
ensure adequate focus on the key risks faced by the company: namely, Market risk, Credit risk, Fraud risk, Operational risk, 
Physical & Infrastructure risk, Technology risk, Liquidity risk, People risk, Regulatory risk, Reputational risk, and Business 
risk.  

Our credit risk framework ensures a prior and periodic comprehensive assessment of every client, counterparty, and the 
collateral. Exposure limits are sanctioned to counterparties based on their creditworthiness and pre-defined credit policy, 
duly approved by the board. The credit risk monitoring mechanism ensures that exposure to clients is diversified and 
remains within stipulated limits. Mindful assessment of the quality and quantum of collateral is key for a client limit.  

The credit risk management framework typically includes identifying credit risks, establishing credit policies and procedures, 
underwriting, ongoing monitoring credit risk, mitigation of credit risk, reporting and management of credit risk, and 
improvement wherever required. Credit underwriting involves analysing financial statements, credit reports, and other 
relevant information to assess the borrower's loan repayment ability. Ongoing monitoring and improvement involves 
analysing data on credit losses, conducting regular risk assessments, and updating policies and procedures to reflect changes 
in the organization or the external environment.  

The company has an elaborate Liquidity Risk Management framework. The pivot to the 'Asset Light' business model 
facilitates ALM risk management structurally. CLM (Co-Lending Model) and securitization are the key levers of the asset-
light framework. Additionally, the asset-liability mismatch and collateral margins are regularly assessed. Liquidity 
requirements are closely monitored, and necessary care is taken to maintain sufficient liquidity for maturing liabilities and 
for any unforeseen requirements. Diversification in the sources of borrowing is ensured to reduce dependence on a single 
source. Operational risk is monitored by checking on metrics such as system downtime, fraud incidents, and operational 
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losses to identify and mitigate operational risk.  In addition to defining new processes, constant review of all critical processes 
is undertaken to proactively identify weak controls and strengthen the same. This helps us in ensuring compliance with 
governing laws. The business environment, increasing complexities, and sophistication of technology make us vulnerable to 
both internal and external fraud risks. The anti-fraud framework that emphasizes on proactive reporting and early detection 
of incidents is defined and implemented. Training and campaigns ensure that the employees are cognizant of this risk. More 
specifically, due diligence of borrower's income, KYC, and title reports is carried out strictly as per the policy to avoid fraud. 
The framework for fraud risk management typically includes assessment of fraud risk, development of fraud prevention 
policies and procedures, implementation of fraud prevention policies and procedures, detection and investigation of fraud 
incidents, response to fraud incidents and ongoing monitoring and improvement. The company is exposed to various changes 
in laws and regulations. Regularly realigning with the changed regulatory framework is the key to mitigating this risk.  

Our risk management approach is three-pronged: Understanding the risk, taking timely and adequate risk management 
actions followed by strong risk oversight. The three lines of defence model enables a profound understanding to help take 
timely action with adequate governance mechanisms.  

Further, the Risk Appetite framework guides the company in developing risk tolerances for strong risk oversight. Our risk 
appetite is reviewed periodically by the Board of Directors to ensure that it remains appropriate to the business objectives 
and risk environment. Across each risk vector, several Key Risk Indicators (KRI) are presented, supporting the risk appetite 
statements. The feasibility of the KRIs and thresholds is reviewed annually to consider potential changes in the underlying 
assumption used in defining such KRIs. This outlook on risk management has enabled the company to be a step ahead 
through environmental stress. 

Our People 

Celebrating a Year of Shared Success 
People make up the core of who we are. Naturally, we take pride in fostering an environment where all individual's talents 
are valued, voices are heard, and ideas are embraced. 
 
Engaging and Nurturing Success: As a company, our focus is to become an employer of choice. Our efforts centre 
around promoting employee well-being, nurturing talent through rewarding programs, fostering leadership connections and 
ensuring recognition through our existing platforms, such as Nido Premier League, WOW Café, WOW cards, WOW 
Champions.  

Future-Forward Excellence: To help foster talent and embrace new-age capabilities, this year, our aim will be to 
collaborate with campuses and institutes to train interns and apprentices, ensuring a pipeline of fresh talent for the future. 
Additionally, we've implemented internal career-growth platforms to facilitate mobility and create new opportunities for 
our employees.  

Nurturing Harmony in Work and Life: Our extensive internal employee benefits, encompassing leave policies, 
Mediclaim, wellness programs, corporate sports platforms and our accessible open-door culture reflect our steadfast 
commitment to nurturing our employees' overall well-being. Our JumpStart Friday initiative allows employees to leave early 
from work on every first Friday of the month, thus encouraging employees to unwind and pursue personal interests. 

Emphasizing Learning and Leadership Growth: We are dedicated to fostering excellence through continuous learning 
and leadership empowerment. Our Siksha learning platform and performance management framework are designed to 
pinpoint the essential competencies for employees to succeed and excel in their respective roles. We invest in our 
workforce by providing targeted interventions in areas such as domain knowledge, functional expertise, behavioural skills, 
technical proficiency and leadership development.  

Internal Control Systems  

Nido Home Finance has an adequate internal control system commensurate with the nature, complexity of its business and 
the size of its operations; and designed to ensure accuracy and promptness in financial reporting, fraud control, and 
compliance with laws and regulations. The Internal Auditors monitor and evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of internal 
control systems in the Company and their compliance with regulatory directions. All significant audit observations and 
follow-up actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which actively reviews the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems and suggests improvements for strengthening the existing internal 
control system because of changing business needs. Based on the Internal Auditor's report, process owners undertake 
corrective actions in their respective areas and strengthen the controls.  

 



Annual Report 2024-25         
  

9 
 

Corporate Governance Philosophy  

The Company firmly upholds the highest governance standards, aspiring to be a paradigm of integrity in the Housing Finance 
sector. We firmly believe that exemplary corporate governance is pivotal to achieving this vision, we have therefore 
prioritized the implementation of robust practices across all aspects of our operations.  

For us, corporate governance extends beyond mere regulatory compliance; it embodies transparency, fairness, 
accountability and integrity, bolstered by effective internal controls and timely disclosure to stakeholders. In our annual 
report, we proudly reaffirm our unwavering commitment to governance and compliance, thereby recognizing them as 
foundational to our operational ethos.  

Simultaneously, compliance remains integral to our operations, with diligent adherence to all relevant laws and regulations. 
Through comprehensive policies, procedures, and regular assessments, we uphold the highest standards of legal and ethical 
conduct, safeguarding the interests of our stakeholders and fortifying our resilience in dynamic market environments.  

Governance Framework: Led by the Board of Directors and supported by various committees, our robust governance 
framework provides effective oversight and strategic guidance.  

Committees enhance structural efficiency and effectiveness, addressing specific governance areas. Continuous improvement 
ensures adherence to best practices and regulatory compliances, enhancing long-term stakeholder value 

Outlook and Summary  

The housing finance industry is entering a multi-year growth cycle, and we are firmly positioned to scale with it. With the 
foundation built and the model established, we are now positioned to scale with discipline, resilience, and a clear line of 
sight to sustainable growth. 
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BOARD’S REPORT  
 

To the Members of  
Nido Home Finance Limited 
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited),   
 

The Directors hereby present their 17th Annual Report on the business, operations and the state of affairs of the Company 
together with the audited financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 (year under review): 

Financial Highlights                                                                         
                                                                (₹ in million) 

Particulars  2024-25 2023-24 
Total Income 5,206.26 4,648.43   

Total Expenditure 5,011.43 4,387.88   

Profit before tax 194.83 260.55  

Tax Expense (including Deferred Tax) 8.50 67.50  

Profit after tax 186.33 193.05  

Add: Profit and Loss account balance brought forward from 
previous year 

2,443.34 2,278.74   

Other comprehensive income for the year (2.06) (0.56)  

Profit available for appropriation 2,627.61 2,471.23   

Appropriations 

- Transfer to special reserve under Section 29C of the 
National Housing Bank Act, 1987 

- Transfer from Debenture redemption reserve 
- Reversal of ESOPs charges or cancellation 
- Deferred Tax Liability on opening balance of special 

reserve created and maintained u/s 36(1)(viii) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 

- Dividend to Equity Shareholders 

 

(38.76) 

- 

1.86 

- 

(52.01) 

 

(38.60) 

- 

10.71 

- 

-  

Surplus carried to Balance Sheet  2,538.69 2,443.34 

Networth (net of intangibles and deferred tax asset)  8,282.00 8,147.88 

 
Results from operations and Information on the state of affairs of the Company 
During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company earned revenues of ₹5121.00 million as against ₹4579.20 million in 
the previous year and the Profit after tax for the year ended March 31, 2025 stood at ₹ 186.33 million as compared to a 
profit after tax of ₹193.05 million in the previous year. Of the total income earned during the year, income from fees and 
commission stood at ₹457.17 million and income from lending activities stood at ₹ 4452.66 million.  

During the year under review, the loan sanctions (in-principal approvals) and the loan disbursements were ₹ 25,608.56 
million and ₹ 36,302.39 million respectively. Out of total income of ₹5206.26 million earned during the year, income from 
fees and commission stood at₹457.17 million.  
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The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing loans and advances for housing activities. It is also engaged 
in soliciting and procuring insurance business as a Corporate Agent. During the year under review, there has been no change 
in existing nature of business of the Company.  

Transfer to Reserves: 
Out of profit for the year, ₹ 38.76 million has been transferred to special reserve under Section 29C of the National Housing 
Bank Act, 1987. 

Transfer from Reserve 
Pursuant to the provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules thereunder, the Company being an Housing 
Finance Company is exempt from creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve in respect of NCDs issued during the year. 
In respect of public issuance of NCDs, the Company has invested 15% of the amount of debentures maturing during the 
corresponding financial year to maintain liquidity to fulfill its obligations arising out of debentures.   

Dividend 
The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on April 29, 2025 have recommended a final dividend of 
Re.0.35 per equity share of face value of Rs.10/- each for the financial year 2024-25. The same is subject to the approval of 
the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

Share Capital 
As at March 31, 2025, Authorized Share Capital and Paid up Share capital of the Company stands at ₹ 750 million and ₹ 
693.5 million respectively. During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorized Share Capital and Paid-up 
Share Capital of the Company. 

Transfer of Shares 
During the year under review, no share transfer requests were received by the Board of Directors. 

Capital Structure 
As on 31st March 2025, out of the Company’s total equity paid-up share capital comprising of 69,350,000 Equity Shares, 
69,349,994 Equity Shares representing 100% of paid-up equity capital were held in dematerialized mode. 

Credit Ratings 
The credit ratings enjoyed by the Company from various rating agencies as on 31st March 2025 are detailed in the 
Corporate Governance Report. 

Finance & Resource Mobilization 
Our Company continued to borrow funds from Banks and various financial institutions in line with the Asset-Liability 
Management requirements.  

During the year under review, the Company issued Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating to an 
amount of ₹2,412.88 million through Public Issue and ₹ 100 million on private placement basis.  

The Company has been regular in making payments of principal and interest on NCDs. During the year under review, the 
Company has paid/redeemed Non-Convertible Debentures amounting to ₹516.287 million on or before their respective 
due dates. As of March 31, 2025, outstanding Secured Non-Convertible Debentures stands at ₹11958.18 million and 
outstanding Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures amount to ₹500 million. 

Further the Company has borrowing lines from Banks/ FIs which were available for the liquidity requirements of the 
Company. Apart from these, the Company assigned retail pool of mortgage assets amounting to Rs.356.50 cr. 

In terms of para 68 of the Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, 
the total number of non-convertible debentures which have not been claimed by the investors or not paid by the housing 
finance company after the date on which the non-convertible debentures became due for redemption were ₹1,74,767.00, 
and the total amount in respect of such debentures remained unclaimed or unpaid beyond the date referred hereinbefore 
was ₹49,92,960. 

Change in credit rating 
The Company enjoys credit rating from various Rating Agencies. The details of the credit ratings are more particularly 
provided in the Notes to the Financial Statements and Corporate Governance Report. 
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Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Company 
Your Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate Company, nor has it entered int any Joint Venture Agreement. 

Loans, Investments and Guarantees  
The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans and making investments as part of treasury activities, particulars 
of which are provided in the Notes to Financial Statements. Except as disclosed in the financial statements, during the year 
under review, the Company has not given any guarantee. 

Updates post March 31, 2025 
There were no major update post March 31, 2025. 

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company 
Except as disclosed in the notes to accounts, if any, there has been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting 
the financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which 
the financial statement relates (i.e. March 31, 2025) and the date of this report.  

Annual Return 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, the copy of 
the annual return would be made available on the website of the Company at https://nidohomefin.com/ within the prescribed 
timelines. 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under Master Direction – Non-Banking 
Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 forms part of the Annual Report. 

Related Party Transactions 
All the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company are on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. 
Particulars of contracts or arrangements with the related Parties as referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure) Regulations 2015 (“SEBI Listing 
Regulations”) and forming part of this report is provided in the financial statement and also annexed as Annexure I (Form 
AOC-2). All the Related Party Transactions as required under Ind AS-24 are reported in the Notes to the financial statement. 

The Company has formulated Related Party Transactions Policy. The Policy is uploaded on Policy on Related Party 
TransactionsNew.pdf 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel  
 

i. Independent Directors 
 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, the 
Independent Directors submitted declarations that each of them meet the criteria of independence as provided in 
the said section. Based on the aforesaid, the Board confirms that they meet the criteria of independence as 
prescribed in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and 
that they are independent of the Management.  

Further, in the opinion of the Board, all existing Independent Directors meets the standards of the Company with 
regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including proficiency). Further, their name have been included in the 
data bank created by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Fifth Amendment Rules, 2019 dated October 22, 2019. 

ii. Non-Independent Directors 
 

a. Non-Executive Director 
 

The Board of the Company has 1 (one) Non-Executive Director as on the date of this report. The Non-Executive 
Directors are liable to retire by rotation.  

 

 

https://nidohomefin.com/
https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party%20TransactionsNew.pdf
https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party%20TransactionsNew.pdf
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b. Executive Director 
 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi (DIN - 07969623), is the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (“MD&CEO”) of the 
Company. He was re-appointed as the MD&CEO of the Company for a term of 3 years with effect from September 
23, 2023. The Executive Director is liable to retire by rotation.  

c. Director retiring by rotation  
 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi (DIN – 07969623) retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General meeting (AGM) and, being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

d. Key Managerial Personnel  
 

During the year under review and until the date of this report there were no changes in the Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company. 

Number of Board Meetings held 
During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Board met 7 (seven) times on April 16, 2024, May 7, 2024, June 24, 2024, July 
25, 2024, August 29, 2024, October 22, 2024 and January 24, 2025. 

The constitution of the Board of Directors and changes thereto during the year under review is detailed in the Corporate 
Governance Report. 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
The Company has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration Policy as per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Policy provides a framework for the remuneration of the Directors, Members of Senior Management and 
other employees of the Company and ascertaining the criteria for appointment/ re-appointment of the Directors. The Policy 
is placed on the website of the Company viz. https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-
governance/Remuneration%20Policy.pdf 

Evaluation of the performance of the Board 
The Board has framed a Board Evaluation Policy (“the Policy”) for evaluating the performance of the Board, Chairman, 
Executive Directors, Independent Directors, Non-executive Directors and Committees of the Board.  

The Policy, inter-alia, provides the criteria for performance evaluation such as Board effectiveness, quality of discussion and 
contribution at the meetings, business acumen, strategic thinking, time commitment, relationship with the stakeholders’, 
contribution of the Committees to the Board in discharging its functions, etc. 

According to the Policy, the Company has carried out the performance evaluation of the Directors including the 
Chairperson, Committees and Board as a whole for the FY 2024-25. The Independent Directors at their meeting held on 
April 29, 2025 reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent Directors, Executive Directors and Board as a whole. 
The Report of the Performance Evaluation of all the Directors was presented to the Board at their meeting held on April 
29, 2025. The Board discussed the report and overall found the performance of the Directors, Committees and the Board 
was satisfactory.  

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy 
The internal controls at Nido are commensurate with the business requirements, its scale of operation and applicable 
statutes to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business. These controls have been designed to ensure reasonable 
assurance with regard to maintaining proper accounting controls, substantiation of financial statements and adherence to 
IND AS requirements, safeguarding of resources, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, ensuring operating 
effectiveness, reliability of financial reporting, compliance with applicable regulations and relevant matters covered under 
section 134 (5) (e) of the Companies Act 2013. 

The Internal Control Framework of Nido follows the below assurance practices to strengthen overall control: 

• COSO framework is implemented by considering the control environment, periodic risk assessment, performing 
control activity, timely communication to management and monitoring the control activities on a continuous basis. 

• Assurance on process efficiency by defining relevant, adequate scope of internal audit, pro-actively preparing for 
regulatory review, remediating through preventive and corrective steps for identified risk events.  

• Reliability of internal controls aligned to risks identified in Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA) is monitored through 
process and internal financial control review. 

https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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• Adequate documentation in the form of policies and SOPs (Standard Operating Procedures) enhances the control 

mechanism. 

Internal Financial Controls 
The internal financial controls adopted by the Company are in accordance with the criteria established under the Internal 
Control – Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway 
Commission. Based on its internal evaluation and as confirmed by the Statutory Auditors of the Company, the Management 
Team believes that adequate internal financial controls exist in relation to its Financial Statements. 

Further details relating to the Company’s internal control systems and internal financial controls and their adequacy are 
covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis. 

Risk Management  
Risk Management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy. The Risk Management Committee oversees the 
risk management framework of the Company through regular and proactive intervention by senior management personnel.  

The constitution and the changes in the constitution of the Risk Management Committee during the year under review is 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

The Company has a Risk Management Policy in place and adopts a conservative and forward-looking risk management 
practices while lending. The risk management framework ensures that the Company underwrites to prudent risk standards, 
focuses on its target segment and delivers sustainable profitability. The Senior Management is responsible for ensuring that 
appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place for monitoring, identifying and reviewing the risks associated 
with the business of the Company, with due support and guidance from the risk management team. The Company leverages 
analytics to design relevant application-level scorecards and also ensures dashboards for effective dynamic portfolio 
monitoring. 

Mr. Ajeet Lodha is the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) of the Company who is entrusted with such duties and responsibilities as 
prescribed by the sectoral regulator including under NHB Policy Circular no. 95 /2018-19 and RBI Master Direction – Non-
Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 as 
applicable to Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).   

Audit Committee  
In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) and Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Audit Committee. The said Committee carries out 
such functions as are statutorily prescribed under the extant applicable laws and other incidental and ancillary matters 
related thereto. During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Audit Committee met five (five) times on May 7, 2024, June 24, 
2024, July 25, 2024, October 22, 2024 and January 24, 2025. 

The constitution and the changes in the constitution of the Audit Committee during the year under is provided in Corporate 
Governance Report. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors 
of the Company have constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The said Committee carries out such 
functions as are statutorily prescribed under the extant applicable laws and other incidental and ancillary matters related 
thereto. During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 4 (four) times on May 
03, 2024, June 24, 2024, October 22, 2024 and January 24, 2025. 

The constitution and the changes in the constitution of the NRC during the year review is provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report. 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“the CSR Committee”). The said Committee carries out such functions as are 
statutorily prescribed under the extant applicable laws and other incidental and ancillary matters related thereto. During 
the year under review, the CSR Committee met 2 (Two) times on May 3, 2024 and January 23, 2025.  

The constitution and the changes in the constitution of the CSR Committee during the year under review is provided in 
the Corporate Governance Report. 
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The Company has a Board approved CSR Policy in place. The Policy provides guiding principles for selection of CSR activities, 
implementation and monitoring mechanism of CSR projects/programmes. The CSR Policy of the Company is uploaded on 
the website i.e. https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-
governance/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf 

The Report on the CSR activities for the FY 2024-25 is annexed as Annexure II. 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the Board of 
Directors of the Company have constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (‘SRC Committee’). The Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee considers and resolves the grievances of security holders, customers of the Company and other 
incidental and ancillary matters related thereto. During the year under review, the SRC Committee met 2 (Two) times on 
May 03, 2024 and October 18, 2024.  

The constitution of the SRC Committee during the FY 2024-25 is provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

Statutory Auditors 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder (the Act), 
M/s. MGB & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 
years till the conclusion of 19th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company to be held in 2027. There were no 
qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors in the Auditor’s Report for Financial Year 
2024-25. 

Internal Auditors 
The Board at its meeting held on June 24, 2024 had appointed M/s. Sharp & Tannan Associates as the co-sourced Internal 
Auditor on contractual basis of the Company for FY2024-25. 

Secretarial Audit  
The Board had appointed M/s. Manish Ghia & Associates, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company at its meeting held on July 
25, 2024 for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. A report issued by the Secretarial Auditors with observations is 
annexed as Annexure III. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations and adverse 
remarks. 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
The Company has framed a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace. There was no case reported during 
the year ended March 31, 2025 under the Policy. The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution 
of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings / Outgo 
 
A. Conservation of Energy 

 
The operations of the Company are not energy intensive. However, adequate measures have been initiated for conservation 
of energy:  

i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy -: 
 LED fixtures with low KW rating are being used to reduce the lighting load at Corporate Office.  
 Quarterly /Periodic maintenance of Air Conditioners for better performance and to control power 

consumption at Corporate Office. 
 Electrical Planned Preventive Maintenance is performed at the branches to ensure that the health of the 

Electrical set-up is maintained which in turn conserves energy. 
 

ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of energy – Though the operations of the Company 
are not energy intensive, the Company will endeavor to explore alternative source of energy, as and when it is 
technically and commercially viable.   

 
iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment – Nil 

 

https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf
https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf
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B. Technology Absorption 
 

(i)  Efforts made towards technology absorption: 

• The Company is continually working towards streamlining and optimizing the business workflows via 
technology absorption for most of the business functions and operations of the Company.  

• Majority of legacy applications have been, either consolidated, or decommissioned;  and have been replaced 
with digital workflows & modern technology solutions. 

• Engineering of better technology solutions & elimination of fragmented applications, legacy applications, or 
applications functioning in silos; a continuous process; shall continue in-parallel; so that there are no outages 
& zero business continuity risks. 

• The Company is continually working towards digitization & digitalization across various business verticals. 
• The Company has adopted a cloud-first approach, for all its existing & future applications; with a keen 

intent of optimizing technology spends & embracing cutting-edge tech stack. 
• We operate in a highly automated environment and make use of the latest technologies to support various 

operations. We have in place a governance framework, information security practices and a business 
continuity plan to mitigate information technology-related risks. We are also guided by the Information 
Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy laid down by RBI Master Direction - Information Technology 
Framework for the NBFC Sector alongside we are also guided by an independent assurance team within 
Internal Audit which provides assurance on the management of information technology-related risks. In 
addition, employees mandatorily and periodically undergo information security training and sensitization 
exercises. 
 

(ii)  Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: 

• Reduction of data-loss during customer onboarding, 
• Consolidation of digital assets, storage & speedy retrieval, 
• Various product enhancements; and 
• Cost & resource optimization of ownership & upkeep of multiple applications relating to manpower, 

infrastructure, support, and maintenance. 
 

(iii)  In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 
year) - Not Applicable  

(iv)   Expenditure incurred on Research and Development (R&D):  

The Company does not have a dedicated R&D division. However, the Company has been adopting cutting edge 
technology stack (low-code / no-code development platform, etc.) and unconventional models for solution 
engineering; for fastest go-to-market product deliveries. 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo  
 
There were no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year under review (previous year: Nil).  

Other Disclosures 
No disclosure is required in respect of the details relating to the deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 
2013, issue of Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise, sweat equity shares, as there were 
no transactions on these matters during the year ended March 31, 2025. Except as mentioned below there were no 
significant or material order passed by any regulator or court or tribunal which would impact the status of the Company as 
a going concern and the operations in future.  

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) by order dated August 12, 2024, imposed a monetary penalty of Rs. 5 lakhs for non-compliance with 
Paragraph II (3) and (4) of Annex of the RBI Directions on ‘Co-Lending by Banks and NBFCs to Priority Sector’ with respect to its 
financial position as on March 31, 2022. 

No material changes have occurred between the end of financial year i.e. March 31, 2024 and the date of this report affecting 
the financial position of your Company.  Further, no fraud was reported by the Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 
143 during the year under review. The provisions of Cost records and audit as prescribed under section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. The Company is in compliance with applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
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Public Deposits 
The Company neither held any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted any public deposits during 
the year under review. 

Geographical presence 
We operate through a wide network of 67 branches as of March 31, 2025 spread across 11 States and 3 Union territories. 
The reach of the Company’s branches allows it to service its existing customers and attract new customers. The Company 
services multiple products through each of its offices and the Company’s spread out office network reduces its reliance on 
any one region in India. 

The geographical details are as under: 

States Branch Counts 
Tamil Nadu 22 
Maharashtra 11 
Gujarat 11 
Andhra Pradesh 7 

Telangana  4 
Karnataka 4 
Chandigarh, Chhattisgarh, Pondicherry, Rajasthan, West Bengal, Madhya Pradesh  ,Delhi 
and Punjab 

One branch each 

 

Regulatory Guidelines 
The Company has complied with all the provisions of Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance 
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India as amended 
from time to time regarding accounting standards, prudential norms for asset classification, income recognition, provisioning, 
capital adequacy, concentration of credit, credit rating, etc. The Company has been maintaining capital adequacy as 
prescribed by the RBI/NHB from time to time. The capital adequacy was at a comfortable level of 33.60 % as on March 31, 
2025, as against 39.05 % (as at March 31, 2024) stipulated by NHB/RBI. 

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism 
The Company has established Vigil Mechanism (‘Whistle-blower Mechanism’) which envisages reporting by directors and 
employees about their genuine concerns or grievances. The policy is uploaded on 
https://nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/Other_Policies/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf.  

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company oversees the vigil mechanism. 

Particulars of Employees 
In terms of provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, forms part of this report. Disclosures as required under 
Rule 5(1) of the aforesaid Rules are provided as Annexure IV to this report. In terms of provisions of Section 136 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, any member interested in obtaining a copy of information under Rule 5(2) of the aforesaid rules, may 
write to the Company Secretary of the Company at the Registered Office address. 

Debenture Trustees: The details of Debenture Trustees of the Company is provided in the Corporate Governance 
Report. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), your Directors confirm that:- 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed;  
 
(ii) such accounting policies have been applied consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the 
profit of the Company for the financial year ended on that date;  
 

(iii)    proper and sufficient care have been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;  

https://nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/Other_Policies/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
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(iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;  
 

(v) internal financial controls have been laid down and the same are adequate and were operating effectively; and  
 

(vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively. 
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ANNEXURE I 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transactions under third proviso thereto:  
 

I. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 
 

II. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 
                           (Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

Sr. 
No. 

Name(s) of the 
related party 
and nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 

arrangements/ 
transactions 

Duration of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 

transactions 

Amount  
(In millions) 

Date of 
approval by 
the Board 

Amount 
paid as 

advances, if 
any 

1 ECap Equities 
Limited 
 

Short term loans 
given  (Transaction) 

One Year 4,950.00  - - 

2 Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate 
Services Limited 
 

Short term loans 
given  (Transaction) 

One Year 5,000.00  - - 

3 ECap Securities 
And Investments 
Limited 
 

Short term loans 
given  (Transaction) 

One Year 1,100.00  - - 

 
The above mentioned material related party transactions were entered into by the Company in the ordinary course of 
business and was duly approved by the Audit Committee of the Company.  
 
 

            For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Nido Home Finance Limited 
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 

 

 

 

Sd/-   Sd/-    
   

       Rajat Avasthi Gautam Chatterjee                 
Place: Mumbai      MD & CEO                   Chairman & Independent Director 
Date: April 29, 2025     DIN: 07969623 DIN: 02464197 
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ANNEXURE II 
 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the Financial year 2024-25 
 

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014] 

 
 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 
To leverage the capacity and capital to equip and enable the social sector achieve the greatest impact on the lives of the underprivileged community in India. 

 
2. Composition of CSR Committee as on March 31, 2025: 

 
Sl. 
No 

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 
during the year# 

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during 
the year 

1 Mr. Gautam Chatterjee Independent Director 2 2 

2 Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar 
 

Independent Director 2 2 

3 Mr. Vinod Juneja^ 
 

Independent Director 1 1 

4 Mr. Rajat Avasthi Managing Director & CEO 2 2 

5 Mr. Deepak Mittal^^ Non-Executive Director 1 1 

# No. of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 

^Dr Vinod Juneja was appointed as member of the Committee w.e.f. October 23, 2024. 

^^ Mr. Deepak Mittal ceased to be a member of Committee w.e.f. October 23, 2024.  

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company: 
CSR Committee Composition -https://www.nidohomefin.com/about_us/ 

CSR Policy and CSR Projects - https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-
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governance/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf and https://www.nidohomefin.com/corporate_governance/investor-relations/ 
 

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not applicable 

 
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and 

amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: 
 

Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from preceding 
financial years (in Rs) 

Amount required to be set-off for the 
financial year, if any (in Rs) 

1 2021-22 Nil Nil 

2 2022-23 Nil Nil 

3 2023-24 Nil Nil 
 Total Nil Nil 

 
6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 194.08 million 

 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 3.88 million 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 3.88 million 
 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
 

 
Total Amount Spent 

for the Financial 
Year. (in Rs. million) 

Amount Unspent (Rs. in million) 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per second proviso to section 135(5). 

 Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Fund Amount. Date of transfer. 

4.00 Nil - - - - 
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(e) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of 
the 

Project. 

Item 
from 

the list 
of 

activitie
s in 

Schedul
e VII to 

the 
Act. 

Local area 
(Yes/No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Project 
duration. 

Amount 
allocated 
for the 

project (in 
Rs.). 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
current 
financial 
Year (in 

Rs.). 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account for 
the project 

as per 
Section 

135(6) (in 
Rs.). 

Mode of 
Implement

ation - 
Direct 

(Yes/No). 

Mode of 
Implementat
ion - Through 
Implementin

g Agency 

State. District. Name CSR 
Registrati

on 
number. 

Details provided in Annexure A 

 
(f) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

 
 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Sl. No. Name of the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule 
VII to the 

Act. 

Local area 
(Yes/ No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Amount 
spent for the 
project (in 

Rs.). 

Mode of 
implementation - 
Direct (Yes/No). 

Mode of implementation - 
Through implementing agency. 

State. District. Name. CSR registration 
number. 

Nil 
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(g) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(h) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A. 

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 4.00 million 

(j) Excess amount for set off, if any: 
 

Sl. No. Particulars Amount (in Rs. 
million) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 3.88 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year                   
4.00 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 1.12 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 1.12 

 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 
 

Sl. No. Preceding Financial 
Year 

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account under 

section 135 (6) (in Rs.) 

Amount spent in 
the reporting 

Financial Year (in 
Rs. million). 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

section 135(6), if any. 

Amount remaining to be 
spent in succeeding 

financial years. (in Rs. 
million) 

    Name of 
the Fund 

Amount (in 
Rs). 

Date of 
transfer. 

 

1. 2021-22 Nil 7.6 - - - - 

2. 2022-23 Nil 1.7 - - - - 

3. 2023-24 Nil 2.26     

 Total Nil 11.56 - - - - 
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(k) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 

 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 
Sl. No. Project ID. Name of the Financial 

Year 
Project Total amount Amount 

spent 
Cumulative Status of the 

Project. in which the duration. allocated for on the 
project 

amount spent project - 

   project was  the project 
(in 

in the at the end of Completed 

   commenced.  Rs.). reporting reporting /Ongoing. 
      Financial 

Year 
Financial 

Year. 
 

      (in Rs). (in Rs.)  
Nil 

 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: 
Not Applicable 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) – N.A. 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset – N.A. 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. – N.A. 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset): – N.A. 
 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not applicable 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Nido Home Finance Limited 
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 

 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 29, 2025 

                                     Sd/-             Sd/- 
Rajat Avasthi Sunil Phatarphekar 
MD & CEO Director 

 DIN: 07969623 DIN: 00005164 
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Utilisation of CSR contribution for F.Y. 2024-25 
 
Annexure A 

 

 

 

  

1 2 3 4 6 7                   8 9 10
Amount trans ferred 

to uns pent CS R 
account for the  
project as  per 

NGO Name

S tate Dis tric t S ection 135(6) Name CS R regis tra tion no. 
1 S cience Centre , Operation Vasantha, Young In         Education - S chedule  VII(ii) No Maharashtra Raigad 3            10,08,897     10,08,897        -                             NO EdelGive Foundation CS R00000514 Agas tya International Foundation
2 Howrah Mobile  S cience Lab Education - S chedule  VII(ii) No West Bengal Howrah 3            4,51,029       4,51,029          -                             NO EdelGive Foundation CS R00000514 Agas tya International Foundation
3 The Collaborators  for Transforming Education Education - S chedule  VII(ii) No Maharashtra Ahmednagar, Akola , Amrav                               1            21,40,074     21,40,074        -                             NO EdelGive Foundation CS R00000514 Quality Education S upport Trus t

4 P roject Monitoring and Evaluation Cos t Education - S chedule  VII(ii) No Maharashtra , W  Raigad, Ahmednagar, Akola                                1            4,00,000       4,00,000          -                             NO EdelGive Foundation CS R00000514 EdelGive Foundation

Total 40,00,000     40,00,000        

Utilis a tion of CSR contribution for F.Y. 2024-2025

Mode of 
implementati

on - Direct 
(Yes /No)

Mode of implementation through 
implementation agency

5 11

P roject 
duration

 Amount 
a llocated for 
the  project 

(INR) 

Amount s pent 
in the  current 
financial year

S . 
No

.
Name of CS R project   is t of activities  in S chedule  V    Local Area 

(Yes /No)
Location of project
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Nido Home Finance Limited 
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)  
Mumbai 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) (CIN: 
U65922MH2008PLC182906) and having its registered office at Tower 3, 5th Floor, Wing B, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor 
City, Kirol Road, Kurla (West), Mumbai - 400070 (hereinafter called ‘the Company’).  Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the 
audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of: 
 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder (Not applicable to 
the company during the audit period); 

 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable 
to the company during the audit period); 

 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 

2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 

2021; 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
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(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable 
to the company during the audit period); 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to 
the company during the audit period); and 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (applicable in respect of Non-convertible debentures of the company listed at stock exchanges); 

 
(vi) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and Credit Information Companies (Regulation) Act, 2005 and the 

directions, regulations issued by Reserve Bank of India thereunder and as made applicable to Housing Finance 
Companies including Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2021, being laws that are specifically applicable to the Company based on their sector/ 
industry.  

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India; 
 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Standards, 
Guidelines etc. mentioned above and in respect of laws specifically applicable to the company based on their sector/industry, 
in so far as registration, membership of credit information companies, submission of various returns to be filed with Reserve 
Bank of India (RBI). 
 
We further report that 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings; agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance, except for one meeting which has been held at a shorter notice, and generally a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes. However, in the minutes of the meetings of Board and its Committees, for the period under review, no dissents 
were noted and hence we have no reason to believe that decisions by the Board were not approved by all the directors 
present. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards and 
guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period the company has: 
 
1. The Company has obtained approval of the Members under section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013, for borrowing 

limits not exceeding to Rs. 7,000 Crore vide Special Resolution passed at the 16th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on June 26, 2024; 

 
2. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 29, 2024, approved the incorporation of Section 8 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, as a public limited Company having share capital. 
 
3. the Company has raised funds by way of allotment of 24,12,883 Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures 

having face value of Rs.1,000/- (Rupees One Thousand only) each, aggregating to Rs.2,41,28,83,000/- (Rupees Two 
Hundred Forty One Crore Twenty Eight Lakhs Eighty Three Thousand Only) on Public Issue basis vide Prospectus 
dated June 7, 2024, September 12, 2024 and December 5, 2024.  

 
4. The Company has raised funds by way of allotment of 1,000 Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Taxable, Non-

Convertible Debentures having face value of Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) each, aggregating to 
Rs.10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crore Only) Private Placement basis. 
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5. The Board of Directors accorded their consent for availing refinance assistance from National Housing Bank amounted 
to Rs. 50 Crore under its Refinance Schemes for Housing Finance Companies as applicable from time to time and Bank 
Guarantee not exceeding to Rs. 7.50 Crore from ICICI Bank Limited. 

 
6. In terms of Regulation 16 of SEBI (Settlement Proceedings) Regulation 2018, the company has filed a settlement 

application in connection with the matter relating to incentives provided to certain categories of investors of non-
convertible debentures in the public issuance of debentures between August 9, 2021 until November 30, 2023, and has 
remitted an amount of Rs. 7.50 Lakhs to Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) towards the same. The Order 
of SEBI on the same is however pending.  

 
7. the RBI vide its order dated August 12, 2024 had levied a penalty of Rs.5 Lakhs on the Company for non-compliance 

with Paragraph II (3) and (4) of Annex of the RBI Directions on ‘Co-Lending by Banks and NBFCs to Priority Sector’ 
with respect to its financial position as on March 31, 2022.   

 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure- A and forms an integral part of this 
report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  April 29, 2025 
UDIN: F006252G000219905 
  
 

 

For Manish Ghia & Associates 
Company Secretaries 
 
 
 
 
CS Mannish L. Ghia 
Partner 
M. No. FCS 6252, C.P. No. 3531 
Peer Review No.: PR 822/2020 
(FRN/Unique ID: P2006MH007100) 
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‘Annexure A’ 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Nido Home Finance Limited 
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 
Mumbai 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provided a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Book of Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on the test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  April 29, 2025 
UDIN: F006252G000219905 
  
 

 

For Manish Ghia & Associates 
Company Secretaries 
 
 
 
 
CS Mannish L. Ghia 
Partner 
M. No. FCS 6252, C.P. No. 3531 
Peer Review No.: PR 822/2020 
(FRN/Unique ID: P2006MH007100) 
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ANNEXURE IV 
 

Disclosure pursuant to Section 197 (12) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details in terms of sub-
section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is as under: 

No. Disclosure 

Requirement 

Disclosure Details 

1 

 

 

 

 

Ratio of the remuneration of each director 
to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the financial 
year 

 

 

Directors Title Ratio 
Mr. Rajat Avasthi       Managing Director &                                              

CEO   
41.55 

2 Percentage increase in remuneration of each 
Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or 
Manager, if any, in the financial year 

Directors / 
KMP’s 

Title % increase 
in remuneration 
# 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi Managing Director & 
Chief Executive 
Officer 

16% 

Ms. Kiran Agarwal 
Todi 

Chief Financial Officer NA 

Ms. Archana 
Nadgouda 

Company Secretary NA 
 

3 Percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the financial 
year 

5.29% 

4 Number of permanent employees on the 
rolls of Company at the end of the year 

Employee on the rolls of Company as on 31st Mach 2025 is 702 

5 Average percentile increase already made in 
the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there 
are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration 

The average increase in the remuneration for employees other than 
the managerial personnel is 9 % and for managerial personnel 13%. 

6 Affirmations that the remuneration is as per 
the remuneration policy of the Company 

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration 
Policy of the Company. 

#Since the remuneration of these KMPs is only for part of the year /previous year, the ratio of their remuneration to median and 
increase, is not comparable. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: April 29, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Nido Home Finance Limited 
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 

 
Sd/-   Sd/-    
  
Rajat Avasthi  Gautam Chatterjee               
MD & CEO                   Chairman & Independent Director 
DIN: 07969623  DIN: 06990345 
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Corporate Governance Report 
 

Corporate Governance Philosophy 
 
At Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) (hereinafter referred to as ‘Nido’ 
and/or ‘Company’), we strongly uphold good governance practices to promote fairness, transparency, accountability and 
integrity. In line with this philosophy, Guiding Principles have been articulated and these forms integral part of Company’s 
corporate governance practices. Processes have been designed to run the businesses responsibly and harmonize diversified 
interests of various stakeholders thereby enhancing stakeholder value. 

The Board also believes that sound governance is critical to retain and enhance stakeholders’ trust. The Company perceives 
governance in its widest sense almost like a trusteeship, a philosophy to be championed, a value to be cherished and an 
ideology to be lived. 

Over the years, the Company implemented governance practices that extended beyond the letter of the law. In doing so, 
the Company has not only adopted practices mandated in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), but also incorporated the relevant non-mandatory compliances, strengthening 
its position as a responsible corporate citizen.  

Governance Structure  
 
The Company implemented a governance structure with defined roles and responsibilities of every systemic constituent. 
The Company’s shareholders appoint the Board of Directors, who, in turn, govern the Company. The Board has constituted 
various Committees to discharge responsibilities in an effective manner. The Chairperson provides strategic direction and 
guidance to the Board.  

The Board 
 
The Board of your Company represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience, which enables the 
Board to discharge responsibilities and provide effective leadership for the achievement of a long-term vision and achieve 
the highest governance standards. As on the date of this report, the Board comprised 5 Directors – 1 Managing Director & 
CEO and 4 Non-Executive Directors including 3 Independent Directors.  

The Board critically evaluates the Company’s strategic directions, management policies and their effectiveness. The Board 
regularly reviews, inter-alia, the industry environment, annual business plans, performance compared with the plans, business 
opportunities including investments/ divestment, related party transactions, compliance processes including material legal 
issues, strategy, risk management and the approval of financial statements/ results. Senior executives are invited to provide 
additional inputs at Board meetings for the items discussed by the Board of Directors as and when required. Further, 
transparent, frequent and detailed interaction provides a strategic roadmap for the Company’s growth. 

The appointments and the tenure of Independent Directors adhere to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) read with Regulation 17(1A) and 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and Board of Directors recommend the appointment/ re-appointment of Independent Directors for consideration of the 
shareholders.   

Directors’ qualifications, skills, expertise, competencies and attributes 
 

Name Skills, Expertise, Competencies 

Mr. Gautam 
Chatterjee 

Financial and Capital Markets, Economics, Accounting and Finance, Risk Management, 
Strategic Management, Leadership, Legal and Compliance, Information Technology, 
Governance 

Mr. Sunil 
Phatarphekar 

Financial and Capital Markets, Legal and Compliance, Corporate Laws and 
Governance, Accounting and Finance 
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Mr. Vinod 
Juneja 

Financial and Capital Markets, Economics, Accounting and Finance, Risk 
Management, Strategic Management, Leadership, Legal and Compliance, Information 
Technology, Governance 

Ms. Shama 
Asnani Human Resources, Leadership and Mentoring Skills, Interpersonal Relations  

Mr. Rajat 
Avasthi 

Financial Services, Credit, Cross-industry proficiency, P&L, Corporate Governance, 
Strategic Planning, Business and Enterprise Leadership, Leading large and diverse 
teams, Managing scale, Learnability, Handling ambiguity and complexity 

 

The Company believes that it is the collective effectiveness of the Board that impacts Company performance and therefore 
members of the Board amongst themselves should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspective suitable 
to the Company. Given the Company’s size, scale and nature of its businesses, the Board has identified skills/ expertise/ 
competencies in the area of financial and capital markets, understanding of laws and regulations, experience in lending 
business, accounting and finance, risk management, strategic management, legal and compliance, information technology, 
governance, leadership and mentoring skills and interpersonal relations for the effective functioning of the Company and 
also possessed by the Board members. The details of the key skills/ expertise/ competencies which are necessary for effective 
functioning of the Company’s business and operations are given in the brief profile of the Directors. 

The eligibility of a person to be appointed as a Director of the Company is dependent on whether the person possesses the 
requisite skill sets identified by the Board as above and whether the person is a proven leader in their respective areas. The 
Directors so appointed are drawn from diverse backgrounds and possess special skill sets with regard to the business 
processes, industries, project management, finance, management, legal fields. 

Confirmation from Independent Directors vis-à-vis Management  
 
Based on the disclosures received from Independent Directors, the Board of Directors have confirmed that they fulfilled 
conditions specified in Section 149(6) of the Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and are 
independent of the Management.   

Changes in the Board of Directors: 
 
Mr. Bishwamohan Mohapatra (DIN: 06990345) Independent Director and Non-Executive Chairperson, resigned from the 
Board of Directors of the Company with effect from August 09, 2024, due to personal reasons such as health, family, etc. 
He has also confirmed that there were no other material reasons for his resignation other than those stated aforesaid.  

Dr. Vinod Juneja (DIN: 00044311) was inducted on the Board of the Company as an Additional Independent Director with 
effect from October 22, 2024. His appointment was approved by the shareholders at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting 
held on January 16, 2025. 

Mr. Deepak Mittal (DIN: 00010337) Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director, resigned from the Board of Directors of 
the Company with effect January 30, 2025, due to personal reasons. 

Ms. Priyadeep Chopra (DIN: 00079353) and Mr. Ankit Aditya (DIN: 07792371) have been appointed as Additional Non-
Executive Directors of the Company, subject to approval of the Reserve Bank of India. The effective date of appointment 
will be the date of receipt of approval from Reserve Bank of India. 

Confirmation by Directors regarding directorship/ committee positions 
 
Based on the disclosures received, none of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than ten public companies 
and none of the Independent Directors serves as an Independent Director on more than seven listed entities as on March 
31, 2025. Further, the Managing Director & CEO does not serves as an Independent Director in any other listed company. 
Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public companies as on March 31, 2025 have been made by 
the Directors and have been reported elsewhere in the report.  

Compliance Initiatives     
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At Nido Home Finance Limited, compliance is a way of life. Our compliance priorities fulfill continuously evolving compliance 
requirements that reflect our own work, changing market conditions and the non-compliance risks of our business. The 
Company reviewed compliance risks at regular intervals. 

The Company also developed a robust, institutionalized, and integrated compliance framework to provide reasonable 
assurance to the management and Board about the effectiveness of its compliance management systems. The compliance 
management systems are in the process of automation for more effective internal control.   

Profile of Directors 

Gautam Chatterjee – Independent Director and Chairperson 

Mr. Gautam Chatterjee (DIN: 02464197) is a retired officer of the Indian Administrative Service of the Maharashtra Cadre 
belonging to the batch of 1982. He superannuated on January 31, 2016. He has held several important assignments both in 
the Government of Maharashtra and Government of India, notable among them being Additional Municipal Commissioner 
of Mumbai Municipal Corporation, Joint Director General of Foreign Trade in the Ministry of Commerce, CEO of 
Maharashtra Housing and Area Development Authority, CEO of Slum Rehabilitation Authority and Dharavi Redevelopment 
Project, Principal Secretary of Maharashtra Housing Department, Joint Secretary in the Ministry of Defence, Director 
General of Shipping in the Ministry of Shipping, Government of India and Additional Chief Secretary, Transport and Ports, 
Government of Maharashtra. After his superannuation, he served as Officer on Special Duty (OSD) to the Chief Minister of 
Maharashtra before taking over as the first Chairperson of the Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority (MahaRERA) 
where he served till January, 2021. 

Sunil Phatarphekar – Independent Director 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar (DIN: 00005164) is the proprietor of SNP Legal (Advocates) and has over 30 years of experience as 
a practicing Advocate. He started his career in 1987. He has subsequently been associated with various law firms including 
Crawford Bayley & Company, Mahimtura & Company, and Shah Desai Doijode & Phatarphekar, Advocates. Mr. Phatarphekar 
also practices in the corporate field with specialization in commercial contracts and new technologies. Mr. Phatarphekar 
also serves as a Non-Executive director on the Board of various companies. 

Dr. Vinod Juneja – Independent Director 

Dr. Vinod Juneja (DIN: 00044311) holds the degree of Bachelor of Law and PhD. Dr. Juneja has rich and varied experience 
of more than 3 decades in the Banking Industry with special expertise in International Banking, Foreign Exchange Syndication 
and Marketing and has worked with various domestic and international banks in senior positions. In recognition of his 
services, Dr. Juneja was conferred with various awards which inter alia include Udyog Ratna Award, Bharat Gaurav Award, 
Gold Star Award, International Gold Star Award, Achievers Excellence Award. He is also an active member of various 
business organisations and also on the Board of reputed companies. 

Shama Asnani – Non-Executive Director 

Ms. Shama Asnani (DIN: -09774021) has over 20 years of work experience in partnering with the business. She has driven 
the HR Function by leading multiple roles in Talent Acquisition, Performance Management, Organisation Engagement, 
Training, facilitating the desired transformation including Diversity. She has also been involved in leading Global projects 
involving domain expertise. She is currently the Head of HR with Credit - Edelweiss Financial Services. 

Rajat Avasthi – Managing Director & CEO 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi (DIN: 07969623) is the Managing Director & CEO of Nido Home Finance, with a career spanning over 25 
years in various industries. With an MBA from University Business School, Chandigarh, and B.Sc. from Punjab University, 
Chandigarh. Mr. Avasthi brings more than 20 years of experience and leadership to Nido Home Finance. He was part of 
Asian Paints for 18 years where he held pivotal roles in sales, corporate marketing, and strategy. Notably, he played a key 
part in devising a market entry strategy for the company's successful expansion into Indonesia. Prior to joining the Edelweiss 
Group in 2017, Mr. Avasthi held a leadership role at Vodafone as the Business Head for Punjab, Himachal Pradesh, and 
Jammu & Kashmir. 

Board Meetings 

The Board meets regularly to deliberate and decide business policy and strategy in addition to routine and other statutory 
businesses. All material information is circulated to the Directors before meetings or placed at the meeting. 
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The Board/ Committees are planned in advance to help the directors plan their schedule and ensure meaningful participation 
in meetings. Additional meetings are convened wherever necessary. The Company also provides video/ audio visual/ 
teleconferencing facilities to Directors to facilitate their participation in meetings. 

Generally, meetings of the Board/ Committees are held in Mumbai. The agenda of the Board/ Committee meetings is 
prepared by the Company Secretary in consultation with the Management. 

During FY2024-25, the Board met 7 (Seven) times on April 16, 2024, May 7, 2024, June 24, 2024, July 25, 2024, August 29, 
2024, October 22, 2024, and January 24, 2025. The maximum interval between any two Board meetings was not more than 
120 days.  

The Company Secretary attends all meetings of the Board and its Committees and is, inter-alia, responsible for recording 
the minutes of such meetings. The draft minutes of the Board and its Committees are sent to the members for their 
comments in accordance with the Secretarial Standard and after incorporating the comments of Directors, the minutes are 
entered in the minutes book within 30 days of the conclusion of the respective meetings. 

The Company has an effective post-meeting follow-up, review and reporting process of decisions taken by the Board. The 
significant decisions of the Board are promptly communicated to the concerned departments/ business units. The action 
taken reports on decisions of the previous meeting(s) are placed at the immediate succeeding meeting for review by the 
Board. 

Composition, Directorships and Attendance as on 31st March 2025 

Name and DIN of the 
Directors 

Category No. of 
Board 
Meetings 
Attended 

Attendanc
e 
at the 
last AGM 
held on 
June 26, 
2024 

No. of 
Director-
ships 
in other 
Public 
Limited 
Companies 
$ 

Committee 
Position* 
Member Chair-

person 

Mr. Biswamohan 
Mahapatra^ 
 (DIN: 06990345) 
 

Independent 3/4 Yes - - - 

Mr. Gautam Chatterjee 
(Chairperson) 
(DIN: 02464197) 
 

Independent 7/7 Yes - - - 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar 
(DIN: 00005164) 
 

Independent 6/7 Yes 3 6 1 

Dr Vinod Juneja^^ 
(DIN: 00044311) 

Independent 2/2 NA 4 5 2 

Mr.  Deepak Mittal* 
(DIN:  00010337) 

Non-
Executive, 
Non 
Independent 

7/7 Yes - - - 

Ms. Shama Asnani 
(DIN: 09774021) 

Non-
Executive, 
Non 
Independent 

7/7 Yes 1 2 - 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi  
(DIN:  07969623) 

Executive 7/7 Yes - - - 

$ Only Directorships of other public limited companies incorporated in India have been considered and excludes 
private limited companies, section 8 companies and foreign companies 
*Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, in other public limited companies, have been 
considered for the Committee position. 
^Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra resigned as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from on August 9, 2024. 
^^Dr. Vinod Juneja was appointed as an Independent Director with effect from October 22, 2024. 
* Mr. Deepak Mittal resigned as Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from January 30, 2025. 
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      Name of other listed entities (equity/debt) where person is also a Director along with Directorship: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Disclosure of relationships between Directors inter-se 

None of the present Directors are having any inter-se relationship and each one of them is Independent of each other. 

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors: 

The details of shareholding of Non-Executive Directors as at March 31, 2025 is as under: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director  No. of shares held 

1.  Mr. Gautam Chatterjee - 

2.  Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar - 

3.  Dr. Vinod Juneja - 

4.  Ms. Shama Asnani - 

5.  Mr. Rajat Avasthi - 

       

Directors Induction and Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors: 

The Board members are provided with necessary information, documents, reports and internal policies to familiarise them 
with the Company’s procedures and practices. Presentations at regular intervals are made by the Senior Management, 
covering areas like operations, business environment, budget, strategy and risks involved. Updates on relevant statutory, 
regulatory changes encompassing important laws/ regulations applicable to the Company are circulated to Directors. 

Upon appointment, Independent Directors receive a letter of appointment, setting out in detail the terms of their 
appointment, duties, responsibilities and indicative time commitment. 

The details of familiarisation programmes for Independent Directors are posted on the website of the Company and can be 
accessed at  

https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-
governance/Familiarisation%20Program%20for%20Independent%20DirectorsNew.pdf 

Directors proposed to be re-appointed 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi (DIN: 07969623), Director, is liable to retire by rotation and proposed to be re-appointed. The brief 
resume forms part of the Corporate Governance Report and other information required in terms of Secretarial Standards 
is appended in the Notice for convening the Annual General Meeting. 

Name Name of Listed Entity Designation 
Mr. Gautam 
Chatterjee 

- - 

Mr. Sunil 
Phatarphekar 
 

1. Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited Independent Director 

2. Edel Finance Company Limited Independent Director 

3.  EAAA India Alternatives Limited  Independent Director 

Dr. Vinod Juneja Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services 
Limited 

Independent Director 

Edel Finance Company Limited Independent Director 
Ecap Equities Limited Independent Director 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited Independent Director 
Ms. Shama 
Asnani 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi - - 

https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Familiarisation%20Program%20for%20Independent%20DirectorsNew.pdf
https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Familiarisation%20Program%20for%20Independent%20DirectorsNew.pdf
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Committees of the Board 

The Company has the following Board Committees: 

i. Audit Committee 
ii. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
iii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
iv. Risk Management Committee 
v. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
vi. IT Strategy Committee 
vii. Asset Liability and Management Committee (ALCO) 
viii. Lending Committee 
ix. Securities Committee 
x. Wilful Defaulter Review Committee. 

 
The Board also constitutes specific committee(s) from time to time, depending on emerging business needs. The terms of 
reference of the Committees are periodically approved, reviewed and modified by the Board. The recommendation and/or 
observations and decisions are placed before the Board for information or approval. Minutes of the Committee meetings 
are confirmed by the respective Committee and thereafter the same are noted by the Board. 

The Company implements an effective post-meeting follow-up, review and reporting process concerning the decisions taken 
by the Committees. The significant decisions are promptly communicated by the Company Secretary to the concerned 
departments/ business units Head(s). The action-taken report on decisions of the previous meeting(s) is placed at the 
immediate succeeding meeting for review by the respective Committee. 

i. Audit Committee 
 
Composition, Meetings and Attendance  

The Audit Committee comprises of three directors namely Mr. Gautam Chatterjee (Chairperson and Independent 
Director), Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar (Independent Director), and Dr. Vinod Juneja (Independent Director). All the members 
possess financial/ accounting expertise/ exposure and have relevant financial/accounting experience.  

The Committee’s composition and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of Section 177 of the Act and 
Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

During 2024-25, five meetings of the Audit Committee were held on May 7, 2024, June 24, 2024, July 25, 2024, October 22, 
2024 and January 24, 2025. The maximum interval between any two meetings was not greater than 120 days. The requisite 
quorum was present in all meetings. The attendance of Directors at the Audit Committee was as follows: 

Name of Member Category Designation No. of Meeting(s) 

Held# Attended 

Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra^ Chairperson Independent 
Director 

3 2 

Mr. Gautam Chatterjee^^ Chairperson Independent 
Director 

5 5 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Member Independent 
Director 

5 5 

Dr. Vinod Juneja** Member Independent 
Director 

1 1 

Mr. Deepak Mittal* Member Non-Executive 
Director 

4 4 

# No of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 
^Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra resigned as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f August 9, 2024 and ceased to be Member 
of the Committee 
^^Mr. Gautam Chatterjee was elected as the Chairperson of the Committee w.e.f October 23, 2024. 
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* Mr. Deepak Mittal ceased to be a member of Audit Committee w.e.f October 23, 2024.  
**Dr. Vinod Juneja was appointed as an Independent Director effective from October 23, 2024. 
 

The Audit Committee invites executives as it considers appropriate, particularly the Chief Financial Officer, Internal Audit 
Function Lead and representatives of Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors (for internal audit matters) to be present at 
its meetings. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. There were no instances wherein any 
recommendation of the Audit Committee was not accepted by the Board. 

Terms of Reference 

Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include: 

a. oversight of financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information of the Company to ensure that the financial 
statement is correct, sufficient and creditable;  
b. recommendation for the appointment, removal, remuneration and terms of appointment of Statutory Auditors and 
Internal Auditors of the Company; 
c. approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them; 
d. reviewing with the management, the Annual Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon before submission to the 
Board for approval with particular reference to : 
e. Matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the Board’s Report in terms 
of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 
f. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
g. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 
h. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
i. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 
j. disclosure of any related party transactions; 
k. modified opinion (s) in the draft audit report; 
l. reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval; 
m. review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 
n. reviewing, with management, performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors & adequacy of the internal control systems; 
o. Review the Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
p. Consider and take on record the periodic statement/report of Related Party Transactions; 
q. grant omnibus approval for Related Party Transactions including any subsequent modifications from time to time; 
r. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties 
s. scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
t. valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 
u. Review Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors as well as Internal 
Audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses 
v. evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
w. reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issue, private placement etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the 
offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue including Quarterly statement of deviation(s) submitted to stock exchange(s) and annual 
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of 
Regulation 32(7) and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter; 
x. Reviewing the adequacy of Internal Audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 
y. discussion with Internal Auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 
z. reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud 
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board; 
aa. discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 
bb. to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in 
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 
cc. reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower/vigil mechanism; 
dd. approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of 
the candidate; 
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ee. reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding 
rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the Subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / 
investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision. 
ff. consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., 
on the listed entity and its shareholders 
gg. To monitor fraud; 
hh. Oversee implementation of regulatory policies including Anti Money Laundering and KYC (Know your Customer) 
Policies; 
ii. Ensure that an Information System Audit of the internal systems and processes is conducted at least once in two years to 
assess operational risks faced by the NBFCs; 
jj. carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee 
kk. Investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified in the relevant section of The Companies Act, 2013 or 
referred to it by the Board and for this purpose the Committee shall have full access to information contained in the records 
of the company and external professional advice, if necessary; 
ll. review and approve such activities as may be stipulated under various statutes /laws/regulations including amendments 
thereof from time to time, to be performed by the Committee; 
mm. to oversee the implementation of the Compliance Policy and periodic review of the same; 
nn. reviewing the report and findings of the compliance risk assessment conducted; 
oo. to prescribe the periodicity for review of compliance risk; 
pp. advising on compliance related concerns including any compliance breaches, exceptions, etc. and appropriate controls/ 
mitigation plans for same; and 
qq. any other terms of reference as may be specified by the Board from time to time. 

 

ii. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 
 

Composition, Meetings and Attendance 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee presently comprises of four Directors including three Independent 
Directors namely Mr. Gautam Chatterjee (Chairperson and Independent Director), Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar (Independent 
Director), Dr. Vinod Juneja (Independent Director) and Mr. Rajat Avasthi (Managing Director & CEO). The Committee’s 
composition and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of Section 135 of the Act. 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was formed in accordance with Section 135 of the Act read with the SEBI 
Listing Regulations as amended from time to time. The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (“CSR Policy”) is aimed at 
promoting social welfare through its comprehensive programs. The said Policy is available for reference at the company’s 
website: 

https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-
governance/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf  

The details with respect to the CSR Policy and expenditure made by the Company during the year under review are provided 
in Annexure III to this report. 

During 2024-25, two meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were held on May 03, 2024 and January 
23, 2025.  The requisite quorum was present in all the meetings. The attendance of members was as follows:  

Name of Member Category Designation No. of Meeting 

Held# Attended 

Mr. Gautam Chatterjee Chairperson Independent Director 2 2 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Member Independent Director 2 2 

Dr. Vinod Juneja^ Member Independent Director 1 1 

Mr. Deepak Mittal^^ Member Non-Executive Director 1 1 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi Member Managing Director & CEO 2 2 

https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf
https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf
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# No of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 
^^ Mr. Deepak Mittal ceased to be a member of Committee w.e.f October 23, 2024.  
^Dr Vinod Juneja was appointed as member of the Committee w.e.f October 23, 2024. 
 
Terms of Reference 

Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include: 

i. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (the CSR Policy) which shall indicate 
the activities to be undertaken by the company for CSR as specified in Schedule VII; 

 

ii. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities; 
 

iii. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time. 
 

iii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
Composition, Meetings and Attendance 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three directors namely Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar (Independent 
Director and Chairperson), Mr. Gautam Chatterjee (Independent Director) and Mr. Vinod Juneja (Independent Director) 
(appointed w.e.f. April 02, 2025). The Committee’s composition and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions 
of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.  

The details of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy are provided in the Directors’ Report. 
 
The details of remuneration paid to all the Directors and other disclosures required to be made under Regulation 53 of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations have been published elsewhere in this report and in the Board Report. 
 
During 2024-25, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met four times on May 03, 2024, June 24, 2024, October 
22, 2024 and January 24, 2025. The requisite quorum was present in all the meetings. The attendance of members was as 
follows: 

Name of Member Category Designation No. of Meeting 

Held# Attended 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Chairperson Independent 
Director 

4 4 

Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra^ Member Independent 
Director 

2 2 

Mr. Gautam Chatterjee* Member Independent 
Director 

2 2 

Mr. Deepak Mittal^^ Member Non-Executive 
Director 

4 4 

# No of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 
^ Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra resigned as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f August 9, 2024 and ceased to be member 
of the Committee. 
* Mr. Gautam Chatterjee was appointed as the member of the Committee w.e.f. September 26, 2024. 
^^ Mr. Deepak Mittal resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company and ceased to be a Member of Committee w.e.f January 
30, 2025.  
 
Terms of Reference 

Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include: 
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a. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and other employees;  

b. annually review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the 
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes; 

c. formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board of Directors and whether 
to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation of independent director; 

d. specify manner for effective evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors and 
review its implementation and Compliance;; 

e. to devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;  
f. identify the persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down, explore their interest and availability for board / senior management service, 
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal as and when need arise; 

g. to ensure ‘fit and proper’ status and credentials of proposed /existing Directors;  
h. formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes etc. and independence of a Director;  
i. To evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare 

a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director 
j. annually review and recommend the salary, bonus, equity option plan other compensation to the Key Employees (as 

defined in Shareholders Agreement dated March 5, 2019 executed by and amongst the Company, its Members and 
CDPQ Private Equity Asia Pte. Ltd.), as well as the quantitative & qualitative objectives for the relevant Financial Year 
and the Key Performance Indicators (KPI) structure associated with the award of any incentives; 

k. make recommendations to the Board regarding:  
i. policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Employees and other employees 
ii. plans for succession for both executive and non-executive Directors, as well as Key Employees 

l. review the performance of Key Employees in case of significant underperformance by the Company w.r.t. expected 
profitability, net worth, quality of assets, etc. and review the reasons for such under performance and evaluate the 
performance of Key Employees. The Committee shall recommend to the Board to take appropriate steps including 
revision of the remuneration / compensation of the relevant Key Employee or any other action as it may deem fit. 

m. The Committee shall report to the Board on its proceedings after each meeting on all matters within its responsibilities. 
n. The Committee is authorized by the Board to obtain, at the Company’s expense, outside legal or other professional 

advice on any matters within its terms of reference 
o. recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 
p. to review and approve such activities as may be stipulated under various statutes /laws/regulations including 

amendments thereof from time to time, to be performed by the Committee; and 
q. such other functions as may be prescribed from time to time. 

 
Performance Evaluation Criteria including for Independent Directors 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations, the performance evaluation framework is determined 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. According to the framework, the Company has carried out the 
performance evaluation of the Directors including the Chairperson, Committees and Board as a whole for the FY 2024-25. 
The Independent Directors at their meeting held on April 29, 2025 reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent 
Directors, Executive Directors and Board as a whole. The feedback from the performance evaluation was shared with the 
individual Directors. The feedback on the Board and Committees performance was also shared. The Board of Directors 
identified the actionable with due emphasis and focus on sustainable improvement in governance practices and business 
growth.  

 
iv. Risk Management Committee                                                                                                                                                                                
 

Composition, Meeting and Attendance 

The Risk Management Committee comprises of four members namely Mr. Gautam Chatterjee (Independent Director and 
Chairperson), Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar (Independent Director), Mr. Deepak Mittal (Non-Executive Director) and Mr. Rajat 
Avasthi (Managing Director & CEO). The Committee composition is in compliance with provisions of Regulation 21 of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations.  

During the Financial year 2024-25 the Risk Management Committee met five times on May 03, 2024, June 24, 2024, July 19, 
2024, October 18, 2024 and January 24, 2025. The requisite quorum was present in all the meetings. The attendance of 
members was as follows: 
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Name of Member Category 

 

Designation No. of Meeting(s) 

Held# Attended 

Mr. Gautam Chatterjee** Chairperson Independent Director 2 2 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar*** Member Independent Director 2 2 

Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra* Member Independent Director 3 2 

Mr. Deepak Mittal^^^ Chairperson/ 
Member 

Non-Executive Director 5 5 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi Member Managing Director & CEO 5 5 

Ms. Kiran Agarwal Todi^^ Member Chief Financial Officer 3 3 

Mr. Umesh Wadhwa^ Member Executive 3 2 

# No of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 
*Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra resigned as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f August 9, 2024 and ceased to be Member 
of the Committee. 
** Mr. Gautam Chatterjee was appointed as Chairperson of the committee w.e.f September 26, 2024. 
***Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar was appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. September 26, 2024. 
^ Mr. Umesh Wadhwa ceased to be Member of Committee w.e.f September 26, 2024. 
^^Ms. Kiran Todi ceased to be Member of Committee w.e.f September 26, 2024. 
^^^ Mr. Deepak Mittal was Chairperson up to September 25, 2024. Mr. Deepak Mittal resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the 
Company and ceased to be a Member of Committee w.e.f January 30, 2025. 
 
Chief Risk Officer is permanent invitee to the Committee.  

Terms of Reference   

Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include: 

a. Identifying, measuring and monitoring the various risks faced by the Company; 
b. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:  

I. A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Company, in particular 
including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, environmental, social and governance-related 
[ESG] related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee; 

II. Measure for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks. 
III. Business continuity plan. 

c. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks associated 
with the business of the Company; 

d. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy of risk 
management systems; 

e. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering the changing 
industry dynamics and evolving complexity; 

f. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations and actions 
to be taken 

g. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to review by 
the Risk Management Committee. 

h. Mitigating   various   risks   associated   with   functioning of  the Company through Integrated Risk Management 
Systems, Strategies and Mechanisms; 

i. To deal with issues relating to credit policies and procedure and manage the credit risk, operational risk, management 
of policies and process; 

j. To assist in developing the Policies and verifying the Models that are used for risk measurement to have oversight over 
implementation of risk and related policies; 

k. Promoting an enterprise risk management competence throughout the organisation, including facilitating development 
of IT-related enterprise risk management expertise; 

l. Establishing a common risk management language that includes measures around likelihood and impact and risk 
categories; 

m. To evaluate the  effectiveness in the made in placing a progressive risk management system and strategy followed by 
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the Company; 
n. to evaluate  the overall risks faced by the Company including liquidity risk and report to the Board; and 
o. Evaluating the risks and materiality of all existing and prospective outsourcing activities. 

 

v. Stakeholders Relationship Committee  
 

Composition, Meetings and Attendance  

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of four Directors namely Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar (Independent 
Director and Chairperson), Mr. Gautam Chatterjee (Independent Director), Ms. Shama Asnani (Non-Executive Director) 
and Mr. Rajat Avasthi (Managing Director & CEO). The Committee’s composition and terms of reference are in compliance 
with provisions of the Act and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

During 2024-25, the Committee met two times on May 03, 2024 and October 18, 2024. The requisite quorum was present 
in all the meetings. The attendance of members was as follows: 

Name of Member Category 

 

Designation No. of Meeting(s) 

Held# Attended 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Chairperson Independent Director 2 2 

Mr. Gautam Chatterjee  Member Independent Director 2 2 

Mr. Deepak Mittal^ Member Non-Executive Director 1 1 

Ms. Shama Asnani^^ Member Non-Executive Director 1 1 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi Member Executive Director 2 2 

# No of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 
^Mr. Deepak Mittal ceased to be Member of Committee w.e.f September 26, 2024. 
^Ms. Shama Asnani was appointed as the Member of Committee w.e.f September 26, 2024. 
 
Terms of Reference 

Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include: 

a. Consider and resolving the grievances of the customers, security holders, including complaints related to 
transfer/transmission of securities including review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of securities, non-receipt 
of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

b. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 
c. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being rendered 

by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 
d. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends 

and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company. 
e. Redressing of shareholders, customers and investor complaints, transfer of Equity Shares and issue of 

duplicate/split/consolidated share certificates, non-receipt of balance sheet, etc.; 
f. Monitoring transfers, transmissions, dematerialization, re-materialization, splitting and consolidation of Equity Shares 

and other securities issued by the Company, including review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of securities; 
g. Reference to statutory and regulatory authorities regarding investor grievances; 
h. Ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances;  
i. To do all such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary or incidental to the exercise of the above powers; and 
j. to review and approve such activities as may be stipulated under various statutes /laws/regulations including 

amendments thereof from time to time, to be performed by the Committee.’’ 
 

Redressal of Investor Grievances 

The Company receives investor complaints from Stock Exchanges viz. BSE and NSE, SEBI Complaints Redress System 
(SCORES), Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, through the Bank’s Registrar and Transfer Agents and also directly from 
investors’ correspondence. The Company addresses all complaints, grievances and other correspondence expeditiously and 



Annual Report 2024-25         
  

43 
 

replies generally within 7-10 days except in the case of legal impediments and non-availability of documents. The Company 
endeavours to implement suggestions as and when received from investors. The Company has designated email ID namely 
investorgrievances@nidohomefin.com for reporting complaints/ grievances. The email ID is also displayed on the website 
of the Company. No Shareholders complaints were received during FY 2024-25. There were 87 investor complaints (Non- 
Convertible Debentures Holders) which were received during FY 2024-25 and all were resolved to the satisfaction of the 
Debenture holders. There were no pending complaints at the end of the financial year. 

Compliance Officer 

Ms. Archana Nadgouda, Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer of the Company under SEBI Listing Regulations.  

vi. IT Strategy Committee  
 
Composition, Meetings and Attendance  

IT Strategy Committee comprises of three Directors namely, Mr. Gautam Chatterjee (Chairperson and Independent 
Director), Dr. Vinod Juneja (Independent Director), and Mr. Rajat Avasthi (Managing Director & CEO). The Committee’s 
composition and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the RBI guidelines. 

During 2024-25, the Committee met four times on April 16, 2024, July 10, 2024, October 18, 2024 and January 23, 2025. 
The requisite quorum was present in all the meetings. The attendance of members was as follows: 

Name of Member Category Designation No. of Meeting(s) 

Held# Attended 

Mr. Biswamohan 
Mahapatra* 

Chairperson Independent Director 2 2 

Mr. Gautam Chatterjee** Chairperson Independent Director 4 4 

Dr. Vinod Juneja**** Member Independent Director 1 1 

Mr. Deepak Mittal*** Member Non-Executive Director 4 3 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi Member Managing Director & CEO 4 4 

Mr. Ajeet Lodha^ Member Executive 2 2 

Mr. Vivek Agarwal^^ Member Executive 2 2 

Mr. Vikram Kacker ^^^ Member Executive 2 1 

Mr. Dinesh Singh ^^^^ Member Executive 2 2 

#    No of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 
* Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra resigned as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f August 9, 2024 and ceased to be member 
of the Committee. 
**Mr. Gautam Chatterjee was appointed as Chairperson of the Committee w.e.f September 26, 2024. 

*** Mr. Deepak Mittal resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company and ceased to be a member of committee w.e.f January 
30, 2025 
^Mr. Ajeet Lodha ceased to be member of the Committee w.e.f September 26, 2024. 
^^ Mr. Vivek Agarwal ceased to be member of the Committee w.e.f September 26, 2024. 
^^^Mr. Vikram Kacker ceased to be member of the Committee w.e.f September 26, 2024. 
^^^^ Mr. Dinesh Singh ceased to be member of the Committee w.e.f September 26, 2024. 
**** Dr. Vinod Juneja was appointed as member of Committee w.e.f October 22, 2024. 
 
Terms of Reference 

Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include: 

• Approving IT strategy and policy documents, within the framework approved by the Board, and ensuring that the 
management has put an effective strategic planning process in place; 

mailto:investorgrievances@nidohomefin.com
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• Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the IT delivers value to the 
business; 

• Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are acceptable; 
• Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to achieve strategic goals and 

provide high level direction for sourcing and use of IT resources; 
• Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining HFC' s growth and becoming aware about exposure towards 

IT risks and controls; 
• Review the functioning of IT Steering Committee; 
• The Committee should appraise/ report to the Board periodically and also report on particular matters to Audit 

Committee or Risk Committee, as required; 
• With respect to outsourced operations the Committee shall have the following functions: 

 Instituting an appropriate governance mechanism for outsourced processes, comprising of risk based policies 
and procedures, to effectively identify, measure, monitor and control risks associated with outsourcing in an 
end to end manner; 

 Defining approval authorities for outsourcing depending on nature of risks and materiality of outsourcing; 
 Developing sound and responsive outsourcing risk management policies and procedures commensurate with 

the nature, scope, and complexity of outsourcing arrangements; 
 Undertaking a periodic review of outsourcing strategies and all existing material outsourcing arrangements; 
 Evaluating the risks and materiality of all prospective outsourcing based on the framework developed by the 

Board; 
 Periodically reviewing the effectiveness of policies and procedures; 
 Communicating significant risks in outsourcing to the Board on a periodic basis; 
 Ensuring an independent review and audit in accordance with approved policies and procedures; 
 Ensuring that contingency plans have been developed and tested adequately; and 
 Ensuring business continuity preparedness is not adversely compromised because of outsourcing. 

vii. Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) 
 
Composition, Meetings and Attendance  

The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) comprises of three Directors and two executives namely Mr. Rajat 
Avasthi (Managing Director & CEO), Mr. Gautam Chatterjee (Independent Director), Mr. Deepak Mittal (Non-Executive 
Director), Mr. Ajeet Lodha (Chief Risk Officer) and Ms. Kiran Agarwal Todi (Chief Financial Officer). The Committee’s 
composition and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of the RBI Guidelines. 

During 2024-25, the Committee met four times on May 3, 2024, July 19, 2024, October 18, 2024 and January 24, 2025. The 
requisite quorum was present in all the meetings. The attendance of members was as follows: 

Name of Member Category Position No. of Meeting(s) 

Held# Attended 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi Chairperson Managing Director & 
CEO 

4 4 

Mr. Gautam 
Chatterjee^ 

Member Independent Director 2 2 

Mr. Deepak Mittal* Member Non-Executive 
Director 

4 3 

Ms. Kiran Agarwal 
Todi 

Member Executive 4 4 

Mr. Ajeet Lodha Member Executive 4 4 

# No of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 
^Mr. Gautam Chatterjee was appointed as member of the Committee w.e.f. September 26, 2024. 
*Mr. Deepak Mittal resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company and ceased to be a member of Committee w.e.f. January 

30, 2025. 
 
Terms of Reference 
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Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include: 

a. review of macro-economic scenario, impact of industry and regulatory changes monitoring the asset liability gap. 
b. Strategizing action to mitigate liquidity and other risks associated with the asset liability gap. Review and suggest 

corrective actions on liquidity mismatch, negative gaps and interest rate sensitivities. Formulate a contingency funding 
plan (CFP) for responding to severe disruptions and develop alternate strategies as deemed appropriate, which take 
into account changes in: 
 
i. Interest rate levels and trends 
ii. Loan products and related markets 
iii. Monetary and fiscal policy 

 
c. Articulating and monitoring liquidity risk tolerance that is appropriate for its business strategy and its role in the financial 

system, and verifying adherence to various risk parameters and prudential limits. 
d. Implementation of liquidity risk management strategy of the Company and reviewing the risk monitoring system. 
e. Ensure that credit exposure to any one group does not exceed the internally set limits as well as statutory limits set 

by RBI. 
f. Decide the strategy on the source, tenor and mix of assets & liabilities, in line with its business plans, taking into account 

the future direction of interest rates. Establish a funding strategy that provides effective diversification in the sources 
and tenor of funding. Consider product pricing for advances, desired maturity profile and mix of the incremental assets 
and liabilities, prevailing interest rates offered by peer NBFCs for similar services/products, etc. Discuss and report on 
the impact of major funding shifts and changes in overall investment and lending strategies. 

g. Endeavour to develop a process to quantify liquidity costs, benefits & risk in the internal product pricing. 
h. Review behavioural assumptions and validate models for study of assets & liabilities in preparation of Liquidity and 

Interest Rate Sensitivity Statements and ALM analysis. 
i. Review stress test scenarios including the assumptions and results. 
j. Review and approve the capital allocation methodology. 
k. Analyse and deliberate at meetings, issues involving interest rate and liquidity risk, including capital allocation, liquidity 

cost, off balance sheet exposures, contingent liabilities, management of collateral position and intra-group transfers. 
l. Review the results of and progress in implementation of the decisions made in the previous meetings. Report the 

minutes of its meeting to the Board of Directors on quarterly basis. 
m. Formulate ALM policy for the Company;  
n. In respect of liquidity risk oversight would include, inter alia, decision on desired maturity profile and mix of incremental 

assets and liabilities, sale of assets as a source of funding, the structure, responsibilities and controls for managing 
liquidity risk, and overseeing the liquidity positions of the Company;  

o. Should ensure that an independent party regularly reviews and evaluates the various components of the Company 
liquidity risk management process. 

viii. Securities Committee 
 

The Securities Committee comprises of three Directors namely Mr. Rajat Avasthi (Managing Director & CEO), Ms. 
Shama Asnani (Non-Executive Director) and Ms. Manisha Khadye (Management).  

During 2024-25, the Committee met four times on January 23, 2025, February 13, 2025 and two meetings were held on 
February 24, 2025. The requisite quorum was present in all the meetings. The attendance of members was as follows: 

Name of Member Category Position No. of Meeting(s) 

Held# Attended 

Mr. Deepak Mittal* Member Non-Executive 
Director 

1 1 

Ms. Shama Asnani Member Non-Executive 
Director 

4 4 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi Member Managing Director & 
CEO 

4 4 

Ms. Manisha Khadye Member Management  4 4 

#  No of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 
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*Mr. Deepak Mittal resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company and ceased to be a member of Committee w.e.f. January 
30, 2025. 

 
Terms of Reference 

Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include: 

a. Finalising the basis of allocation, allotment of securities to the successful allottees; from time to time and to undertake 
all ancillary actions; 

b. to decide on the timing, size, pricing and the terms and conditions of the relating to Issue/Offer of securities; 
c. to approve the preliminary as well as the Shelf Information Memorandum/ Information Memorandum/ Private 

Placement Offer cum Application Letter / Offer Document / Term Sheet / Supplementary Information Memorandum 
/ draft Prospectus, Prospectus/ Rights issue offer letter/ other agreements / deeds and documents (by whatever 
name called), and to approve all other matters relating to the issue, to approve notices, advertisement, corrigendum 
(if required)  as may be required or desirable for the proposed issue of Securities whether in India or overseas and 
execute and deliver the same to with the Stock Exchange(s), Securities Exchange Board of India (“the SEBI”), Registrar 
of Companies and any other appropriate authorities, as and when required; 

d. Monitor the maximum limit of investors as required under Companies act, 2013 and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 
regulations, identify investors for offering securities on private placement basis and keep record of the same; 

e. to decide all the terms and conditions of the Debentures including secured, unsecured, convertible, non-convertible 
Debentures and the Debentures in the form of structured products Debentures including the security, rate of 
interest, tenure and such other terms and conditions and to accept any amendments, modifications, variations or 
alterations thereto, to make the allotment of the Debentures and the redemption of the Debentures on maturity or 
early redemption or conditional redemption, if any, conversion of loan availed by the Company to Debentures  and 
to accept any amendments, modifications, variations or alterations in the terms and conditions of the Debentures, if 
any; 

f. to decide conversion ratio of the Debentures in case of Convertible Debentures, appointment of Registered Valuer 
for valuation of securities, approval of valuation report, payment of fees to the Registered Valuer; 

g. to approve the Re-formatted Financial Statements of the Company for the purpose of incorporating in the Offer 
Documents; 

h. to decide the property or other assets of the Company to be charged for securing the issue of Debentures, make 
purchase of the property for the purpose of offering the same as security for Debentures, create a charge or any 
other security interest over such assets of the Company as considered expedient, in connection with the NCDs to 
be offered, issued and allotted pursuant to such Issue and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary 
for securing the Debentures including but not limited to sign and execute the necessary deeds, purchase agreements, 
other agreements and other papers and documents; 

i. to appoint and enter into arrangements with the one or more Book Running Lead Managers (BRLMs), Underwriters, 
Debenture Trustees, Credit Rating Agency(ies), brokers, Registrar and Transfer Agents, if any, and other agencies or 
persons or intermediaries required for the issue of Securities and to negotiate and finalise the terms of their 
appointment, including but not limited to changing and/or substituting any one or more of the above agencies, 
execution of the Mandate Letters, negotiation, finalisation and execution of the Debenture Trust Deed, Deed of 
Hypothecation or such other security documents as may be deemed expedient, Memorandum of Understanding with 
various intermediaries; 

j. admission of the Securities in dematerialised mode with depositories and to sign agreements and/or such other 
documents, as may be required with depositories and such other agencies, authorities or bodies, as may be required 
in this connection; 

k. To carry out and/or approve all such ancillary/ incidental matters related to the securities including transfers, 
dematerialisation, rematerialisation, transmission, transposition, subdivision, split, endorsements, name deletion, 
consolidation, renewal, exchanges, issuance of duplicates thereof or any other purpose, dispensation of any required 
documents or any other requirements for such purposes etc 

l. to make applications to Stock Exchange(s) for listing of Securities, decide Designated Stock Exchange, accepting any 
alterations/modifications in the said applications and to execute and to deliver or arrange the delivery of necessary 
documentation to the concerned Stock Exchange(s) and to file the Master Creation Form(s), Corporate Action 
Form(s) and such other Forms, Deeds and Documents with the Depositories or such other Authorities or Agencies 
as may be required in this regard;  

m. to authorise any Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or any executives of the Company to sign 
and execute the above documents, Debenture Trust Deed, Deed of Hypothecation or such other security documents 
as may be deemed expedient, agreements, deeds, documents and other necessary papers to be executed with 
aforesaid agencies, parties, etc., for and on behalf of the Company together with the authority to vary, amend or 
modify the same as such authorised person may consider necessary, desirable or expedient in the interest of the 
Company and for the aforesaid purpose, to give such declarations, affidavits, certificates, etc. as such authorised 
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person deem fit  and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary; 
n. to remunerate aforesaid agencies including the payment of commissions, brokerage, fees, or the likes; 
o. to open and operate the bank accounts, as may be required in connection with the issue of the Securities and to 

authorise persons to operate such Accounts; 
p. to issue Security Certificate(s) including duplicate/split Security Certificate(s), credit the Securities to the beneficiary 

accounts; 
q. to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to such issues or allotment as it may, in its 

absolute discretion deem fit; 
r. to file application, appeal, affidavit, addendum, corrigendum or such other documents with Central Government/ 

Regional Director or such other Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities as may be required for condonation with regard 
creation, filing, perfection of security documents and also to authorise the various persons for the said purposes;  

s. Creation of “Recovery Expense Fund” or such other contribution in relation to issuance of listed or proposed to be 
listed debt securities; 

t. to affix the Common Seal of the Company, if required on any agreement, undertaking, deed or other document , be 
affixed in the presence of anyone or more of the Directors of the Company or more of the officers of the Company 
as may be authorised by the Board in this regard, accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. 

For issuance of Offshore Bond/Medium Term Note Programme: 

u. decide on the timing, size, pricing, cost, security and other terms and conditions including but not limited to 
deciding materiality threshold for various disclosures to be made in offering document/ memorandum/circular 
(by whatever name called), the listing on offshore stock exchanges; 

v. appoint such global coordinators and joint lead managers, arrangers, underwriters, guarantors, depositories, 
custodians, trustees, security trustee, paying agents, transfer agents, registrar, calculation agents, bankers, 
solicitors, lawyers, and any other agencies and intermediaries (both domestic and overseas) as may be involved 
or concerned in such offerings of Notes (collectively, the “Intermediaries”) and to remunerate all such agencies 
by way of commission, brokerage, fees or the like, and to enter into or execute agreements/ arrangements/ 
memorandum of understanding with any such agency or  intermediary and also to seek the listing of the Notes 
in one or more offshore stock exchanges and the admission of the Notes in depositories outside India; 

w. approve, negotiate and execute the programme agreement, agency agreement, trust deed, operating and 
administrative procedures memorandum, offer document/offering memorandum/offering circular, subscription 
agreement, pricing supplement (each as applicable), security documents/agreements, global certificates and other 
related documents, marketing/ distribution materials and make changes as may be required and to approve all 
other matters relating to the Notes, to approve notices, advertisement, corrigendum (if required) and do all 
such acts, deeds, matters, and things including execution of all such deeds, documents, instruments, applications 
and writings as it may, at its discre6on, deem necessary and desirable for such purpose including without 
limitations, the utilization of the proceeds from the Notes; 

x. authorise persons to do all such acts, deeds as may be necessary including the power to sign, execute documents 
and appear before the appropriate authorities; 

y. approve the financial statements including financial statements drawn in accordance with Ind-AS in accordance 
with applicable laws or such other similar statements/ formats as may be required, for the purpose of 
incorporating in the offering memorandum and pricing supplement (as applicable); 

z. open and operate the bank accounts (in India and abroad) to be opened in connection with the Notes and to 
authorize the persons to operate such account; 

aa. authorize and approve the payment of fees and other related expenditures to the Intermediaries and other 
agencies and other persons in connection with the Notes; 

bb. allot the Notes pursuant to this resolution in accordance with the terms of offering; 
cc. decide on the offshore stock exchanges where the Notes will be listed, to execute and to file the offering 

circular and pricing supplement (as applicable) and other related documents with the stock exchanges, and other 
appropriate authorities (whether in India or offshore) and to accept changes as may be suggested by such 
authorities; 

dd. authorise the affixation of common seal on all such documents as may be required; 
ee. seek if required, any approval, consent or waiver from the Company’s lenders, and/or the parties with whom 

the Company has entered into various commercial and other agreements, and/or any/all concerned government 
and regulatory authorities (including RBI) in India, or abroad, and/or any other approvals, consents or waivers 
that may be required in connection with the issuance, offer and allotment of the Notes; 

ff. take all actions that may be necessary in connection with the depositories, obtaining ISIN, allotment including 
execution of any documents and payment of any fees in relation thereto; 

gg. accept and appropriate the proceeds of the Notes; 
hh. to resolve and settle all questions and difficulties that may arise in connection with the Notes, and do all other 

acts, deeds and things in connection therewith and incidental thereto as the Committee in its absolute discretion 
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deems fit without the said Committee being required to seek consent or approval of the Board of Directors of 
the Company or otherwise to the end and intent that the Board of Directors of the Company shall be deemed 
to have given its approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.’’ 

 

ix. Wilful Defaulter Review Committee: 
 

The Wilful Defaulter Review Committee (ALCO) comprises of two Directors namely Mr. Rajat Avasthi (Managing 
Director & CEO and Chairperson) and Mr. Gautam Chatterjee (Independent Director). Mr. Deepak Mittal (Non-
Executive Director) resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company and ceased to be a member of the Committee 
w.e.f. January 30, 2025. The terms of reference of the Committee are in compliance with provisions of the RBI Master 
Directions. 

During 2024-25, the Committee met once on January 24, 2025. There have been no wilful defaulters reported in current 
financial year FY2024-25. The requisite quorum was present in the meeting. The attendance of members was as follows: 

Name of Member Category Position No. of Meeting(s) 

Held# Attended 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi Chairperson Managing Director & 
CEO 

1 1 

Mr. Gautam 
Chatterjee 

Member Independent Director 1 1 

Mr. Deepak Mittal* Member Non-Executive 
Director 

1 1 

#  No of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 
*Mr. Deepak Mittal resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company and ceased to be a member of Committee w.e.f. January 

30, 2025. 
 
Terms of Reference 

Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include: 

a. to examine the evidence of a wilful default as prescribed in the RBI Master Directions on Treatment of Wilful 
Defaulters and Large Defaulters; 

b. to issue a show cause notice to concerned borrower and call for their submission; and 
c. to issue an order recording the fact of wilful default and reason for the same. 

x. Lending Committee 
 

The Lending Committee comprises of three Directors namely Mr. Gautam Chatterjee (Independent Director), Ms. 
Shama Asnani (Non-Executive Director) and. The Lending Committee was constituted pursuant to RBI Circular on 
Regulatory restrictions on Loans & Advances given by NBFCs dated April 19, 2022 to approve sanction of Loans and 
Advances to Directors/Senior Officers and their concerned or interested parties. Any two Directors (excluding the 
Director in respect of whom the proposal for grant of loans & advances is being considered) shall jointly approve the 
sanction of such loans and advances and that all the decisions taken by the Committee shall be reported to the Board of 
the Company. The Committee’s composition and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of the RBI 
Guidelines.  

No meetings of the Committee were held during FY2024-25. The resolutions passed by Circulation on November 11, 
2024 and February 14, 2025 by the Lending Committee were reported to the Board at the next meeting. 

Name of Member Category Position No. of Meeting(s) 

Held# Attended 

Mr. Gautam 
Chatterjee 

Member Independent Director 0 0 
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Ms. Shama Asnani Member Non-Executive 
Director 

0 0 

Mr. Rajat Avasthi Member Managing Director & 
CEO 

0 0 

 

Terms of Reference 

Terms of Reference of the Committee inter alia include: 

a. To sanction Loans & Advances to Directors and their related entities, if the loan amount is more than Rupees Five 
Crores; 

b. To sanction Loans & Advances to Directors and their related entities, if the loan amount is Rupees Five Crores or 
less but such Director is a member of Credit Committee, or any other Committee or Authority which has power 
to sanction credit facilities; 

c. To sanction Loans & advances to Senior Officers and their relatives, if such Senior Officer is a member of Credit 
Committee, or any other Committee or Authority which has power to sanction credit facilities; 

d. To review and approve such activities as may be stipulated under various statutes /laws/regulations including 
amendments thereof from time to time, to be performed by the Committee; and 

e. Any other terms of reference as may be specified by the Board from time to time.” 
 
Meeting of Independent Directors  
 
During 2024-25, the Independent Directors met once on May 07, 2024. The requisite quorum was present in the meeting. 
The attendance of members was as follows: 

Name of Directors Position No. of Meeting(s) 

Held # Attended 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar  Independent Director 1 1 

Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra* Independent Director 1 1 

Mr. Gautam Chatterjee Independent Director 1 1 

Dr. Vinod Juneja** Independent Director 0 0 

# No of meetings held during the tenure of the Member in the Committee in FY 2024-25. 
*Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra resigned as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f August 9, 2024. 
**Dr. Vinod Juneja appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. October 22, 2024. 
 
The Independent Directors of the Company met without the presence of Executive Directors under the Chairmanship of 
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar, Independent Director, inter-alia for: 

• Reviewing the performance of Non-independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
• Reviewing the performance of the Chairperson of the Company taking into account the views of Executive and Non-

executive Directors; 
• Assessing the quality, content and timeliness of flow of information between the management and the Board that is 

necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.  
 

Senior Management 

Particulars of senior management personnel as at the end of the financial year (including the changes therein since the close 
of the previous financial year) 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Senior Management 
Personnel 

Designation Date of Cessation, if 
any  
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1.  Mr. Rajat Avasthi Managing Director & 
CEO 

- 

2.  Ms. Kiran Agarwal Todi Chief Financial Officer - 
3.  Ms. Archana Nadgouda Company Secretary - 
4.  Mr. Ajeet Lodha Chief Risk Officer - 
5.  Mr. Rohan Charles Business Head - 
6.  Ms. Manisha N Khadye Legal Head - 
7.  Mr. Vikram Kacker National Credit Head April 01, 2025 
8.  Mr. Vivek Agarwal Chief Operating 

Officer 
January 04, 2025 

9.  Mr. Umesh Wadhwa Executive Vice 
President 

- 

10.  Mr. Vinay Yadav Chief Compliance 
Officer 

- 

11.  Mr. Dinesh Singh Chief Information 
Security Officer 

- 

12.  Mr. Mahesh Dubey* Chief Operating 
Officer 

- 

* Mr. Mahesh Dubey was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer w.e.f. February 1, 2025 

Directors’ Remuneration 

i) Executive Directors 

The Company pays remuneration as per the Board approved Remuneration/ Compensation Policy.  

The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors for 2024-25 was as follows: 

(in ₹) 

Name Remunera
tion 

(Fixed and 
performan
ce bonus) 

Other 
Perquisites 
& benefits 

Commi
ssion 

Contribution to 
Provident & 

Superannuation 
Fund/ 

allowances/ 

Pension 

Total (in Rs.) Stock/ 
Shadow 
Options 
granted 

Term up 
to 

 

 

Mr. Rajat 
Avasthi 

3,22,45,837/- 7,29,878/- - 12,46,560/- 3,42,22,275/- - 
September 
22, 2026 

          
Note :  

    
 

• Salary Considered post deduction u/s 10/17 as per Form 16 
• The annual increments of the Managing Director & CEO is linked to the performance 

and is decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
• The service contract, notice period, retrial benefits, severance pay etc. are applicable 

as per the terms and conditions of appointment of the above Directors.   
    

 

ii) Non-Executive Directors 

The Non-Executive Independent Directors were entitled to a sitting fee of ₹50,000 for attending each Board and Committee 
meeting. No sitting fees was paid to Non- Executive Non-Independent Directors during FY 2024-25. 

The Company also reimburses out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Directors for attending the meetings. The service 
contract, notice period, severance fee etc. are not applicable to the Non-Executive Directors.  

The remuneration paid to the Independent Directors for 2024-25 was as follows:   

                                                                                   (In ₹) 

Name Sitting Fees Commission Total 
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Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra 6,00,000 10,00,000 16,00,000 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar 11,00,000 10,00,000 21,00,000 

Mr. Gautam Chatterjee 14,00,000 10,00,000 24,00,000 

Dr. Vinod Juneja 2,50,000 - 2,50,000 

Total 33,50,000 30,00,000 63,50,000 

 

No stock options were granted to any Independent Director. 

The Company has in place Directors’ & Officers’ Liability Insurance Policy. 

Directors’ Shareholding 

No Director holds equity shares of the Company as on March 31, 2025. 

General Meetings (AGMs/EGMs) 

Particulars of General Meetings held during the last three financial years: 

Year Location Date & 
Time 

Special Resolutions passed 

Annual General Meeting 

2021-22 TOWER 3, WING ‘ B’, 
KOHINOOR CITY MALL, 
KOHINOOR CITY, KIROL 
ROAD, KURLA (WEST), 
MUMBAI – 400070 

30.05.2022 

10:00 A.M 

i) Amendments to the overall borrowing limits 
of the Company 

ii) Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures. 
 

2022-23 TOWER 3, WING ‘ B’, 
KOHINOOR CITY MALL, 
KOHINOOR CITY, KIROL 
ROAD, KURLA (WEST), 
MUMBAI – 400070 

16.06.2023 

04:30 P.M 

i) Amendments to the overall borrowing limits 
of the Company 

ii) Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures. 
 

2023-24 TOWER 3, WING ‘ B’, 
KOHINOOR CITY MALL, 
KOHINOOR CITY, KIROL 
ROAD, KURLA (WEST), 
MUMBAI – 400070 

26.06.2024 

11:00 A.M 

i) Amendments to the overall borrowing    limits of 
the Company. 

 
ii) Modification/ creation of charge on assets of the 

Company as security towards borrowing. 
 

iii) Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on private 
placement basis. 

 
iv) Re-appointment of Mr. Gautam Chatterjee as 

Independent Director of the Company. 
 

v) Re-appointment of Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar as 
Independent Director of the Company. 

 
vi) Payment of Commission to Independent 

Director of the Company. 

Extra-ordinary General Meeting 
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2022-23 TOWER 3, WING ‘ B’, 
KOHINOOR CITY MALL, 
KOHINOOR CITY, KIROL 
ROAD, KURLA (WEST), 
MUMBAI – 400070 

29.03.2023 

04:30 P.M 

 

1. To change the name of the Company and 
consequential alterations in Memorandum of 
Association (MOA) of the Company 

 

2. Adoption of new set of Articles of Association 
(AOA) of the Company 

 

3. Regularization of Appointment of Ms. Shama 
Asnani as a Non-Executive Director, liable to retire 
by rotation 

2023-24 TOWER 3, WING ‘ B’, 
KOHINOOR CITY MALL, 
KOHINOOR CITY, KIROL 
ROAD, KURLA (WEST), 
MUMBAI – 400070 

28-06.2023 

04:30 P.M 

 

 To alter Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the 
Company. 

 

TOWER 3, WING ‘ B’, 
KOHINOOR CITY MALL, 
KOHINOOR CITY, KIROL 
ROAD, KURLA (WEST), 
MUMBAI – 400070 

25.08.2023 

04:30 P.M 

 

 

1. Approval of Revised Remuneration of MD 

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Rajat Avasthi (DIN 
07969623) as Managing Director of the 
Company  

2024-25 TOWER 3, WING ‘ B’, 
KOHINOOR CITY MALL, 
KOHINOOR CITY, KIROL 
ROAD, KURLA (WEST), 
MUMBAI – 400070 

16.01.2025 

11:00 A.M 

 

 

1. Appointment of Dr. Vinod Juneja as Independent 
Director. 

2. Continuation of Dr. Vinod Juneja as Independent 
Director. 

 

During 2024-25, the Company did not pass any resolution through postal ballot. No special resolution is proposed to be 
passed through postal ballot. 

General Shareholder information 

1 Annual General Meeting Please refer to the Notice of the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting 

2 Financial Year (2024-25) April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025 

  - Results for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 – within 
45 days from the end of the quarter 

  - Results for the quarter ended September 30, 2024 – 
within 45 days from the end of the quarter 

  - Results for the quarter ended December 31, 2024 – 
within 45 days from the end of the quarter 

  - Results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2025 
– within 60 days from the end of the quarter 

3 Book closure date Not applicable as equity shares of the Company are not 
listed on any Stock Exchange 
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4 Dividend payment date The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting 
held on April 29, 2025, have recommended a final dividend 
of Re.0.35 per equity share of face value of Rs.10/- each for 
the financial year 2024-25 for the approval of the 
shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Once 
approved by the shareholders, the same shall be paid within 
the regulatory timelines. 

5 Listing of Non Convertible 
Debentures 

The Publicly issued Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) are 
listed on BSE and NSE and privately placed NCDs are listed 
on BSE and NSE as applicable to respective private 
placements. 

The Listing fees as applicable have been duly paid to stock 
exchanges. The addresses of the Exchanges are provided in 
the Annual Report. 

6 Stock Code Not applicable 

7 Stock Market Data Not applicable; as Equity Shares of the Company are not 
listed on any Stock Exchange 

8 Registrar and transfer agent MUFG Intime India Private Ltd. (formerly Link 
Intime India Private Ltd.) 

(Registrar to the equity shares of the Company and 
Registrar to the Issue-NCD Private Placement) 

KFin Technologies Limited 

(Registrar to the Issue-NCD-Public Issue) 

9 Security transfer system Equity shares are in dematerialized form, transfer and 
transmission of such shares is outsourced to Registrar and 
transfer agent. 

NCDs are in dematerialized form transfer and transmission 
of security is outsourced to Registrar and transfer agent. 

10 Dematerialization of shares The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss 
Financial Services Limited (EFSL) and shares are held by 
EFSL, Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 
(ERCSL) and Edel Finance Company Limited are in 
dematerialized form and shares held by Nominee 
shareholders on behalf of EFSL are in physical form. 

11 Correspondence for dematerialization, 
transfer of shares, non –receipt of 
dividend on shares and any other 
query relating to the NCDs of the 
Company 

MUFG Intime India Private Ltd. (formerly Link 
Intime India Private Ltd.) 

C-101, Embassy 247, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra 400083 

KFIN Technologies Limited 

Selenium Tower B, Plot no. 31 and 32, Financial District, 
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddy – 
500 032, Telangana 

12 Address for Correspondence Ms. Archana Nadgouda, Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer 
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Tower 3, Wing ‘B’, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor City, 
Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai – 400070 

13 Outstanding GDR/ ADR/Warrants or 
any convertible instruments, 
conversion date and likely impact on 
equity 

Not applicable 

14 Credit Ratings The details are provided in the Corporate Governance 
Report. 

15 Details on Whistleblower Complaints 
and Complaints received under  The 
Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH) 

No whistleblower and POSH complaints were received 
during FY2024-25. 

16 Details of Material Subsidiaries The Company does not have any Subsidiaries. 

 

Disclosures 

a) Material Related Party Transactions 

None of the materially significant transactions with any of the related parties was in conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large. 

Attention of the members is drawn to the disclosure of transactions with related parties set out in Notes to the Standalone 
financial statement forming part of the Annual Report. 

The Board of Directors laid down a Policy on Related Party Transactions, setting-out the manner in which the Company 
will address related party transactions, including the material transactions based on the threshold limit applicable to such 
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations.  The said 
Policy is available on https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-
governance/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party%20Transactions.pdf. The Board of Directors reviews the said Policy at least 
once every three years for any updation.  

b) Strictures and Penalties by statutory authorities for last three financial years 2022-23, 2023-24 and 2024-25 on matters 
related to capital markets: 

There were no strictures or penalties levied on the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 
2024 and March 31, 2025.  

In terms of Regulation 16 of SEBI (Settlement Proceedings) Regulation 2018, the Company has filed a settlement application 
in connection with the matter relating to incentives provided to certain categories of investors of non-convertible 
debentures in the public issuance of debentures between August 9, 2021 until November 30, 2023, and has remitted an 
amount of Rs. 7.50 Lakhs to Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) towards the same. The Order of SEBI on the 
same is pending.  

c) Compliances 

All Returns/ Reports were generally filed within the stipulated time with the Stock Exchanges/ other authorities. 

d) Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management 

The Code of Conduct (Code) is applicable to all Directors and Senior Management of the Company. The Code is 
comprehensive and ensures good governance and provides for ethical standards of conduct on matters including conflict of 
interest, acceptance of positions of responsibility, treatment of business opportunities and the like. A copy of the of policy 
can be found on https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-
governance/Code%20Of%20Conduct%20for%20Directors%20and%20Senior%20Management.pdf  

https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party%20Transactions.pdf
https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party%20Transactions.pdf
https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Code%20Of%20Conduct%20for%20Directors%20and%20Senior%20Management.pdf
https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/corporate-governance/Code%20Of%20Conduct%20for%20Directors%20and%20Senior%20Management.pdf
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All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance to the Code for the year ended March 
31, 2025. 

e) Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism 

Details of the vigil mechanism are provided in the Directors’ Report. 

f) Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders 

With a view to prevent trading of securities of the Company by an Insider on the basis of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information and pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, 
as amended, the Company put in place a code on the dealings of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. The Copy of the 
code can be found on https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-
redressal/Other_Policies/Code%20for%20UPSI.pdf  

Means of Communication 

The quarterly/ half yearly / annual financial results and media releases on significant developments in the Company including 
presentations that have been made from time to time to the media, institutional investors & analysts are posted on the 
Company’s website https://www.nidohomefin.com/ and are submitted to the stock exchanges on which the Company’s 
debentures are listed, to enable them to host on their respective websites.  

All stock exchange disclosures and periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, 
media releases, statement of investor grievance settlement among others are filed electronically on NSE Electronic 
Application Processing System (NEAPS) & BSE Listing Centre. 

The financial results are generally published in one English national daily newspaper i.e. Financial Express. 

Annual Report: In accordance with the provisions of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the 
Company will provide Annual Report containing inter-alia, Audited standalone financial statements, Auditors’ Report, Board 
Report including Management Discussion & Analysis Report, Corporate Governance Report including information for the 
Shareholders, other important information and Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting electronically.   

Annual Report is also available on the Company’s website https://www.nidohomefin.com/ 

Exclusive Designated e-mail id 

The Company has designated a dedicated e-mail id i.e. investorgrievances@nidohomefin.com exclusively for investors’ 
servicing for faster registration of their queries and/ or grievances. All investors are requested to avail this facility. 

General Shareholders’ Information 

The Company’s registered office is situated in Mumbai, Maharashtra. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the 
Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is U65922MH2008PLC182906.  

a) Annual General Meeting 

Date:   July 2, 2025 

Time:    11:00 A.M. 

Venue: Tower 3, Wing ‘B’, Kohinoor City Mall ,  

             Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west),  

             Mumbai – 400070. 

b) Listing on stock exchanges 

(i) Debentures 

The Debentures of the Company are listed on the following Stock Exchanges: 

a)  BSE Limited (BSE) 

P.J. Tower, Dalal Street 

https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/Other_Policies/Code%20for%20UPSI.pdf
https://www.nidohomefin.com/static/doc/grievance-redressal/Other_Policies/Code%20for%20UPSI.pdf
https://www.nidohomefin.com/
https://www.nidohomefin.com/
mailto:investorgrievances@nidohomefin.com
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Mumbai - 400 001; and 

b)  National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) 

Exchange Plaza, 

Plot no. C/1, G Block, 

Bandra-Kurla Complex 

Bandra (E) 

Mumbai - 400 051. 

Issuer Code 

The issuer code of the Company is 530L 

The Company has paid the listing fees to BSE & NSE for financial year 2024-25.  

The International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to Company’s shares under the Depository System 
INE530L01015 

Outstanding Stock Options/ Compulsorily Convertible Debentures/ Warrants 

As of 31 March 2025, the Company does not have any outstanding stock options/ compulsorily convertible debentures/ 
warrants or other convertible instruments. 

(ii) Debt Instruments 

  Debenture Trustees 

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited 

Universal Insurance Building, 

Ground Floor, Sir P.M. Road, 

Fort, Mumbai 400 001, Maharashtra, India 

Tel: +91 22 4080 7000 

Fax: +91 22 6631 1776 

E-mail: itsl@idbitrustee.com 

Website: www.idbitrustee.com 

Contact Person: Mr. Kunaal Bakhtiani 

CIN: U65991MH2001GOI131154 

Beacon Trusteeship Limited 
5W, 5th Floor, Metropolitan Building, E  
B l o c k ,  B a n dr a  K u r l a  C o m p l e x  
( BK C ) ,  B a nd r a  ( E a s t )  Mumbai 400 051, 
IndiaTel: +91 95554 49955 

Email: compliance@beacontrustee.co.in 
Website: www.beacontrustee.co.in Contact 
Person: Mr. Kaustubh Kulkarni 

 

h) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) for Debentures 

KFin Technologies Limited, Selenium Tower B, Plot No. 31-32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Mandal, 
Hyderabad - 500 032, Telangana, Toll Free No. 1-800-309-4001; e-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com;  

Contact Person: Mr. Chandra Shekhar Chejarla , Deputy Manager – Corporate Registry; (Website: www.kfintech.com 
and / or https://ris.kfintech.com/) is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA).  

KFin is also the depository interface of the Company with both National Securities Depository Limited and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited. 

i)  Share Transfer Mechanism 

Pursuant to Regulation 7(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Compliance Certificate jointly signed by Compliance officer 
and authorized representative of RTA certifying compliance regarding maintenance of securities transfer facilities and 
Certificates for timely dematerialisation of the shares as per SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996; have 
been submitted to stock exchanges within the stipulated time.  

mailto:compliance@beacontrustee.co.in
http://www.beacontrustee.co.in/
mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
https://ind01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdelivery.kfintech.com%2FPYTWNAHI%3Fid%3D75475%3Dch9VAAUHBVJQGlVVVlRTUlYBAwUNVFYJWloBWVcCVAADBwQAV1BQUwRXAVRSB1FaAgNPA1YVEBZXWQQEQQxyDVcKC0RXUVlLBgkITVcDV1IDAQFWCVddDAoLVFcGGFoSRRMWCh0dVQAJDxNUFExLCVFZXRBcAA0WWlcOTmI9ZjF%2FIi15DVtVGRNV%26fl%3DWRcRQEEIHkoXDxYfDVMMDENVUAwXAApVFg%3D%3D&data=04%7C01%7Caggarwal-atul%40dlf.in%7Ce886eb0e9ebd4073990c08d916934ada%7C749836d8722b40c69dc89460c87e8ea3%7C0%7C0%7C637565644145302376%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=OYqTrt5Sxf2fT5hTOG8yVYjgUb2t5jXR0O5XzhiTXK4%3D&reserved=0
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k) Share Ownership Pattern  

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited and the entire shareholding of 
6,93,50,000 Equity Shares is held by the Promoter Group. The Promoters of the Company are Edelweiss Financial 
Services Limited, Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited and Edel Finance Company Limited. Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services Limited is the immediate holding company and holds 38,300,000 Equity Shares representing 55.23% 
shareholding. 

n) Dividend History 

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on April 29, 2025, have recommended a final dividend of 
Re.0.35 per equity share of face value of Rs.10/- each for the financial year 2024-25. The same is subject to approval of 
the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Once approved by the shareholders, the same shall be paid 
within the regulatory timelines. 

The Company had declared a final dividend of Re.0.75 per equity share of face value of Rs.10/- each for the financial year 
2023-24. The Company had not declared dividend during FY2021-22 and FY2022-23.    

o) Transfer of Unpaid/ Unclaimed Dividend Amount/ Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority 

As per the provisions of Section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, an amount of Rs. 3,24,586/- was 
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

q) Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible instruments 

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ ADRs and no convertible instrument is pending for conversion at the end of 
the financial year March 31, 2025.   

s) Plant Locations 

The Company does not have any manufacturing or processing plants. The Registered Office of the Company is situated 
at Tower 3, Wing ‘B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai – 400070. 

t) Address for Correspondence 

    Investor Correspondence 

(i) For transmission/ transposition/ dematerialisation of securities, non-receipt of interest and any other queries 
relating to the securities, Investors may write to: 
 

KFin Technologies Private Limited  

Selenium Tower B  

Plot No.31 - 32,  

Financial District, Nanakramguda 

Serilingampally Mandal, 

Hyderabad – 500 032, Telangana. 

Toll Free No. 1- 800-309-4001 

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com 

Website: www.kfintech.com and/ or https://ris.kfintech.com/ 

Contact Person: Chandra Shekhar Chejarla  

(ii) Ms. Archana Nadgouda, Company Secretary  

Address: Registered Office: Tower 3, 5th Floor, Wing ‘B’, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla 
(West), Mumbai- 400070 

http://www.kfintech.com/
https://ind01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdelivery.kfintech.com%2FPYTWNAHI%3Fid%3D75475%3Dch9VAAUHBVJQGlVVVlRTUlYBAwUNVFYJWloBWVcCVAADBwQAV1BQUwRXAVRSB1FaAgNPA1YVEBZXWQQEQQxyDVcKC0RXUVlLBgkITVcDV1IDAQFWCVddDAoLVFcGGFoSRRMWCh0dVQAJDxNUFExLCVFZXRBcAA0WWlcOTmI9ZjF%2FIi15DVtVGRNV%26fl%3DWRcRQEEIHkoXDxYfDVMMDENVUAwXAApVFg%3D%3D&data=04%7C01%7Caggarwal-atul%40dlf.in%7Ce886eb0e9ebd4073990c08d916934ada%7C749836d8722b40c69dc89460c87e8ea3%7C0%7C0%7C637565644145302376%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=OYqTrt5Sxf2fT5hTOG8yVYjgUb2t5jXR0O5XzhiTXK4%3D&reserved=0
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Tel: +912242722200 

Email: secretarial.team@nidohomefin.com 

(u) Credit ratings  

The credit ratings enjoyed by the Company from various rating agencies as on 31st March 2025 are detailed below: 

CRA Current credit rating / Outlook 

CRISIL CRISIL A+ / Stable 

CARE CARE A / Stable 

ICRA ICRA A+ / Stable 

ACUITE Acuite A+ / Rating Watch with negative implication 

BWR BWR A+ / Rating Watch with negative implication 

 

Compliance Certificate from the Secretarial Auditors 

Certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, Manish Ghia & Associates, Company Secretaries confirming 
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 and paragraphs C, D 
and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations is annexed to this Report forming part of the Annual Report. 

The declaration signed by the Managing Director & CEO of the Company stating that the members of Board of Directors 
and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior 
Management is annexed and forms part of this Report. 

Adoption of Mandatory and Non-mandatory Requirements 

Apart from complying with all the mandatory requirements, the Company has adopted following non-mandatory 
requirements as specified in Regulation 27(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations: 

(a) Modified opinion(s) in audit report: The financial statements of the Company for FY 2024-25 on standalone basis, 
are with unmodified audit opinion. 

(b) Separate Post of Chairperson and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer: The Company has 
appointed separate persons to the post of the Chairperson and the Managing Director and CEO. Further, the Chairperson 
of the Bank is Non – Executive Director and not related to the Managing Director and CEO of the Bank as per the definition 
of the term “relative” defined under the Companies Act, 2013. 

(c) Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditors of the Company directly report to the Audit Committee. 

Certificate from CEO and CFO 

In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Compliance Certificate issued by Chief Executive Officer(s) and 
Chief Financial Officer is annexed to this Report. 

Fee to Statutory Auditors 

The Company has paid fees of Rs. 4.79 million, plus applicable tax to the Statutory Auditors M/s. MGB & Co. LLP. 

Investors 

The website of the Company https://www.nidohomefin.com/ carries information on Financial Results, Corporate 
Announcements, Presentations and Credit Rating, in addition to other relevant information for investors. 

 

 

  

mailto:secretarial.team@nidohomefin.com
https://www.nidohomefin.com/
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Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certification 

 

To 
The Board of Directors 
Nido Home Finance Limited  
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, we hereby certify that: 

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year 2024-25, on standalone basis 
and   that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

(i)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading; 

(ii)  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the financial 
year 2024-25 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. 

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have 
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if 
any, of which we are aware and that we have taken all necessary steps to rectify these deficiencies. 

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

(i)  significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the financial year 2024-25; 

(ii)  significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the financial year  
2024-25 and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

(iii)  instances of significant fraud of which we are aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or 
an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 

For Nido Home Finance Limited                                            For Nido Home Finance Limited 
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)             (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 
      

 

Kiran Agarwal Todi                             Rajat Avasthi 
Chief Financial Officer                             Managing Director & CEO 
                               DIN: 07969623  
 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 29, 2025 
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 

The Board of Directors 
Nido Home Finance Limited  
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 
 

I confirm that all the Directors and Members of the Senior Management have affirmed compliance with Nido Home Finance 
Limited’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management. 

 

For Nido Home Finance Limited 
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 
 
 
Rajat Avasthi                
Managing Director & CEO 
DIN: 07969623 
 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 29, 2025 
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
(Pursuant to Regulation 53 and Para C of Schedule V of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with  
SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/ OW/P/DDHS/25493/1/2021 dated September 23, 2021) 

 
 
To, 
NIDO HOME FINANCE LIMITED  
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)  
Tower 3, 5th Floor, Wing B, Kohinoor City Mall, 
Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, 
Kurla (West), Mumbai – 400070. 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Nido Home Finance Limited (formerly 
known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) for the year ended on March 31, 2025 in accordance with Regulation 53 
read with Para-C of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/OW/P/DDHS/25493/1/2021 dated September 23, 2021. 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination has been 
limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the 
conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Listing Regulations. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the representations 
made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the mandatory conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in relevant regulation(s) of above mentioned Listing Regulations. 
 
We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

 

  

          For Manish Ghia & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: April 29, 2025 
UDIN:  F006252G000219938 

CS Mannish L. Ghia 
Partner 

M. No. FCS 6252, C.P. No. 3531 
Peer Review No: PR 822/2020 

(FRN/Unique ID: P2006MH007100) 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(pursuant to Regulation 53 and Para C of Schedule V of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with  
SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/ OW/P/DDHS/25493/1/2021 dated September 23, 2021) 

To 
        Nido Home Finance Limited 

(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)  
Tower 3, 5th Floor, Wing B, Kohinoor City Mall, 
Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, 
Kurla (West), Mumbai – 400070. 
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Nido 
Home Finance Limited, having CIN: U65922MH2008PLC182906 and registered office at Tower 3, 5th Floor, Wing 
B, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (West), Mumbai - 400070 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 
Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 
53 read with Para C of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/OW/P/DDHS/25493/1/2021 dated September 23, 2021. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the 
Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other 
Statutory Authority. 

Sr. 
No 

Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in 
Company 

1 Mr. Sunil Nawal Phatarphekar 00005164 13/04/2020 

2 Mr. Rajat Ravi Avasthi 07969623 23/09/2020 

3 Mr. Gautam Chatterjee 02464197 16/09/2021 

4 Ms. Shama Asnani 09774021 25/01/2023 

5 Mr. Vinod Anand Juneja 00044311 22/10/2024 

 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate 
is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

          For Manish Ghia & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Place: Mumbai  
Date: April 29, 2025 
UDIN: F00625G000219960  

CS Mannish L. Ghia 
Partner 

M. No. FCS 6252, C.P. No. 3531 
Peer Review No: PR 822/2020 

(FRN/Unique ID: P2006MH007100) 

www.mca.gov.in
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